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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: My name is John Liu.

          3  I have the privilege of chairing today's hearing and

          4  chairing the Committee itself. Today we have

          5  convened this hearing for the purpose of hearing two

          6  bills aimed at improving taxicab service. Intro No.

          7  401 would establish a pilot program to create at

          8  least ten new taxicab stands in areas under-served

          9  by Yellow Cabs which would be staffed by Taxi and

         10  Limousine Commission personnel.

         11                 Intro No. 473 would give taxicabs

         12  using alternative fuels, which include hybrid

         13  electric, priority at taxistand queues that are

         14  staffed by Taxi and Limousine Commission, such as

         15  those at the airports. There are over 13,000 yellow

         16  cabs in New York City, but the service is generally

         17  available only in the Manhattan Central Business

         18  District and also at the airports.

         19                 Many New Yorkers outside the

         20  Manhattan Central Business District do not have the

         21  option of legally hailing a cab off the street and

         22  must call a car service or invariably illegally hail

         23  a livery car. One of the great challenges facing my

         24  colleagues and I is how to get New York City

         25  residents outside the Manhattan Central Business
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          2  District the kind of yellow cab service that they

          3  clearly demand. Creating these taxistands in

          4  under-served areas meeting certain criteria is a

          5  potential answer and is the focus of Intro 401.

          6                 Cab stands help make the economics of

          7  working outside the Manhattan Central Business

          8  District better for taxicabs by creating places

          9  where demand meets supply. This is not speculation.

         10  We have already been working with the Metropolitan

         11  Taxicab Board of Trade in running a yellow cab stand

         12  in downtown Flushing, a major transportation hub,

         13  for nearly four years and nearly 100,000 rides have

         14  been taken by passengers taking yellow cabs at that

         15  particular stand.

         16                 Again, we have been very successful

         17  in matching the supply with demand. The problem

         18  outside the Manhattan Central Business District is

         19  that cab drivers don't necessarily know where to go

         20  to find a passenger with near certainty. And

         21  passengers don't know where to go to find a cab. By

         22  creating these cab stands, we send a very strong

         23  message to cab drivers, that, look, if you come to

         24  this cab stand, there is a very high expectation

         25  that you will find a fare very quickly. And if we
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          2  send the message to the general public that if you

          3  need a cab, come to this cab stand and there is a

          4  very high expectation that you will be able to get a

          5  cab right away.

          6                 That's the secret. It is not rocket

          7  science, but it is a secret ingredient to having

          8  these cab stands, and as I said before, people

          9  outside the Central Business District are already

         10  getting on street, on demand car service. They are

         11  just doing so illegally under our current legal

         12  framework. It is our responsibility as a City to

         13  give them the service that they clearly want.

         14                 There are resources that would be

         15  necessary to effectuate this bill, Intro 401. We

         16  would submit that it is time for the City, after

         17  three consecutive years of reaping windfall profits

         18  from the sale of new medallions, to reinvest a tiny

         19  percentage of those windfall profits back into the

         20  industry for the sole purpose of making this service

         21  highly, coveted service ionic of New York City more

         22  available to people all throughout the five

         23  boroughs.

         24                 We are also today considering

         25  legislation, Intro No. 473, which will encourage
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          2  taxicab owners to purchase clean air taxicabs by

          3  giving them a real incentive, by giving them

          4  priority queue status at existing stands such as

          5  those at the airports. Council Member Daniel

          6  Garodnick of Manhattan is the prime sponsor of Intro

          7  473, and I would like to offer him an opportunity to

          8  present opening remarks.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Commissioner.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Good morning.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

         13  for the opportunity to hear Intro 473 and, of

         14  course, 401. New York City is already taking steps

         15  to reduce carbon emissions and to minimize climate

         16  change. We all know that cutting New York City's

         17  carbon emissions will not only decrease our City's

         18  emission, but will also better the air quality for

         19  our residents. We have approximately 13,000 taxis

         20  operating in New York, we need to make sure that the

         21  City gives every incentive for drivers to use

         22  cleaner vehicles. We are taking the steps to

         23  increase those numbers of alternative fuel taxis on

         24  the road and with approximately 300 of them in the

         25  City, it seems appropriate to give them additional
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          2  opportunities, additional incentives to succeed.

          3                 This law, Intro 473, would reward the

          4  drivers of alternative fuel taxis by giving them a

          5  priority at all taxi queues that are established and

          6  operated by a dispatcher. Along with Chairman Liu's

          7  legislation, if enacted, there would be ten more

          8  taxistands throughout the five boroughs where

          9  drivers could take advantage of this benefit and I

         10  think that as a companion legislation, it is very

         11  sensible and also gives the right incentives for us

         12  to be able to protect the environment and encourage

         13  this sort of technology.

         14                 I'd also like to thank Council Member

         15  Yassky for working with me to propose this

         16  legislation that will do all those things and also

         17  recognize that businesses need rewards for going

         18  green. Thank you, Mr. Chairman for the opportunity.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         20  Member Garodnick.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         22  may I make a brief statement?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, please. Council

         24  Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, as you know, we have

          3  been trying for years now to get taxis back into the

          4  Bronx. I might note that I recall that some years

          5  ago when yellow taxis as a matter of course served

          6  the western part of my district (that is the

          7  Riverdale Kingsridge area), there is a taxi stand on

          8  231st Street and Broadway, I believe there is still

          9  a sign there that says taxi stand, when I was

         10  growing up years ago there were always yellow cabs

         11  at that stand. It was customary for people who got

         12  off the subway to take the taxi from that stand most

         13  frequently to Riverdale. But not only to Riverdale,

         14  but other parts of the northwest Bronx.

         15                 I have been talking about this since

         16  I got elected to the Council. I'm delighted this

         17  legislation is before us. I feel very strongly that

         18  my constituents want this legislation. I feel very

         19  strongly that service from cab stands either by

         20  yellow cabs or other licensed cars, and we have

         21  explored with the Chairman of the Commission the

         22  idea of maybe black cars being allowed to not only

         23  respond to telephone inquiries, but also to respond

         24  at the cab stands, if we can't do it with the yellow

         25  cabs, we should do it with someone else. But the
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          2  situation today is that people are taking illegal

          3  cars. It is not that I begrudge those people the

          4  fares or the living that they make; on the other

          5  hand, they are driving cars, they are not insured,

          6  they are not inspected. People are putting

          7  themselves into harm's way because there is no good

          8  alternative.

          9                 This is one alternative that should

         10  indeed be explored and I support this. I can't tell

         11  you how firmly I support this, Mr. Chairman, and I

         12  hope we move ahead with it. Of course, I want to

         13  hear comments, but I believe it is time for yellow

         14  cabs to be -- you know we had a beaver in the Bronx.

         15  A real, live beaver that created a beaver hut,

         16  whatever they call it, a home in the Bronx Zoo. The

         17  Bronx has more beavers than yellow cabs. That's not

         18  right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         20  Council Member Koppell. That's an interesting

         21  consideration. I fully agree with you that the

         22  Bronx, as much as we want lots of beavers there, we

         23  would like to have yellow cabs there, as well.

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: With all due

         25  respect, that's well beyond my jurisdiction. Last
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          2  time it was penguins, if you remember, a few years

          3  ago.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: With that, we're

          5  delighted to have the Chairman of the New York City

          6  Taxi and Limousine Commission, Commissioner Matthew

          7  Daus, and he is joined by First Deputy Commissioner

          8  Andrew Salkin, also of the TLC. Welcome.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Good morning, Mr.

         10  Chairman, Council Members. My name is Matt Daus. I'm

         11  the Commissioner and Chair of the New York City TLC.

         12  Thank you for the opportunity to appear before you

         13  today to testify with respect to Intro No. 401 in

         14  relation to establishing taxi stands and Intro 473

         15  in relation to priority queue status for alternative

         16  fuel taxicabs. Mr. Chairman mentioned to my right is

         17  our First Deputy Commissioner, Andy Salkin.

         18                 The TLC was created pursuant to the

         19  City Charter and has the responsibility of

         20  developing an overall transportation strategy for

         21  demand responsive transportation providers. We were

         22  established by local low and by TLC regulations. The

         23  TLC licenses and regulates medallion cabs, community

         24  liveries, black cars, commuter vans, paratransit

         25  vehicles, and luxury limousines.
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          2                 Each of these industries provide a

          3  particular service to New York City residents and

          4  visitors and has its own place in the comprehensive

          5  transportation network of the City. For hire

          6  vehicles (otherwise known as FHVs) play an integral

          7  role in the system. The FHV industry is charged with

          8  fulfilling demand for local for- hire service via

          9  passenger initiated requests made directly to bases,

         10  resulting in the dispatch of vehicles to provide the

         11  desired transportation.

         12                 The system features over 550 bases

         13  distributed throughout the five boroughs that

         14  dispatch over 25,000 vehicles to local residents,

         15  successfully offering comprehensive door- to- door

         16  service Citywide. Because the base dispatches all

         17  trips and the passengers are able to easily choose

         18  between bases, these businesses have an incentive to

         19  ensure that the vehicle, the driver and the service

         20  they provide are appropriate to meet the passenger's

         21  expectations in terms of quality and price.

         22                 The taxicab industry, by contrast,

         23  provides service by the acceptance of street hails,

         24  and is the only participant in the for- hire ground

         25  transportation industry with the right to pick up
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          2  passengers on the street without pre- arrangement.

          3  In exchange for this right, taxicab owners, vehicles

          4  and drivers are heavily regulated by the TLC to

          5  ensure public safety, to provide quality customer

          6  service and to set appropriate rates of fare.

          7                 Taxicabs are required to transport

          8  passengers anywhere within the City of New York as

          9  well as to certain destinations beyond, from

         10  wherever they might be hailed. Although taxicab

         11  drivers are independent entrepreneurs who choose

         12  where they start their shift, where they go after

         13  their first pick up of the day is controlled mostly

         14  by passengers. Eighty percent of taxi trips end in

         15  Manhattan, which explains why most taxicabs cruise

         16  in this area.

         17                 The street hail system, by its very

         18  design, will take a taxicab out of Manhattan only

         19  when requested by the passenger. Since only eight

         20  percent of trips involve passenger requests to

         21  locations outside Manhattan or the airports, there

         22  are very few taxicabs available to freely cruise to

         23  other locations of the City.

         24                 These distinctive taxicab and FHV

         25  service structures compliment one another, and meet
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          2  the needs of the public well. The neighborhoods of

          3  New York City have such varied transportation needs

          4  that one service solution does not fit all. In sum,

          5  the current system established by Local Law and TLC

          6  regulations is able to meet the basic transportation

          7  needs of passengers throughout the City and works

          8  well overall.

          9                 Intro 401 proposes the creation of

         10  ten taxi stands throughout the borough staffed by

         11  the TLC for a three- year trial period. It appears

         12  that the intent of the Council in introducing these

         13  bills is to provide for more taxicab service in

         14  specific areas of the City. Certainly, it must be

         15  noted that FHV service is available throughout the

         16  City and is more than capable of meeting passenger

         17  demands. Adding a stand to a local neighborhood to

         18  promote the taxicab industry, in which market forces

         19  work against the driver leaving Manhattan, overlooks

         20  the FHV industry to a certain extent, which has

         21  shown a true willingness and commitment to providing

         22  local community based service.

         23                 My primary concerns with this

         24  proposed legislation are the governmental costs and

         25  logistics involved in managing these stands when
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          2  compared to the added benefits any enhanced service

          3  would provide. Only eight percent of taxicab trips

          4  take place outside of Manhattan and the airports,

          5  which means that there are relatively few

          6  opportunities for taxicabs to even contemplate using

          7  a stand. Since most of these trips occurred during

          8  and after the evening rush hour, we estimate the

          9  true percentage of taxicabs available between 9:00

         10  a.m. and 5:00 p.m. is much less than eight percent

         11  of the total rides per day and the likelihood that

         12  this small number of available cabs would be close

         13  enough to one of these stands to consider utilizing

         14  it is quite small.

         15                 This should, in our view, be a key

         16  consideration when contemplating the cost of

         17  staffing several stands. If the stands were to run

         18  for approximately 12 hours per day, we estimate that

         19  a minimum of over three TLC employees will be needed

         20  to staff each stand. This equates to over $160,000

         21  in direct personnel costs per stand, or about $5

         22  million to run this program during the three year

         23  trial period, which does not include, of course,

         24  capital and any ongoing operational expenses.

         25                 As you know, there is currently a
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          2  stand located in Flushing, at the intersection of

          3  Roosevelt Avenue and Main Street. This stand is

          4  operated with private funds and has had some measure

          5  of success. This success has come via offering

          6  incentives to drivers to use the stands. Initially,

          7  when the stand was created, the members of the

          8  taxicab industry funding its operation, namely the

          9  Metropolitan Taxicab Board of Trade, worked very

         10  closely with drivers to ensure they would provide

         11  service by offering reduced lease fees.

         12                 It is my understanding that this may

         13  no longer be the case. At the primary driver

         14  incentive now is the Port Authority's provision of

         15  what we call airport shorties to drivers who service

         16  the stand. A shorty ticket is usually issued by the

         17  Port Authority to taxicab drivers who after waiting

         18  a significant amount of time at JFK or LaGuardia

         19  airport, must transport a passenger to any area

         20  outside of Manhattan. As an incentive for servicing

         21  the airports, shorty tickets allow taxicab drivers

         22  to return again to either airport after their non-

         23  Manhattan destinations and to advance to the front

         24  of the long lines in the taxicab holding lot.

         25                 Recently, my staff and I personally
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          2  spent time observing the Flushing taxi stand at

          3  various times of the day, interacting with

          4  passengers, drivers and dispatchers. Based on our

          5  observations, it is clear that the stand is

          6  successful in terms of both passenger and taxicab

          7  driver convenience and satisfaction. Most drivers

          8  indicated that they either reside or lease their

          9  taxicab in the area and frequent the stand as the

         10  first fare of their shift, in lieu of their usual

         11  routine of just going directly to the airports.

         12                 Most trips were reported to be local

         13  and instead of returning to the stand, most drivers

         14  proceed directly to the nearest airport, utilize

         15  their shorty tickets to advance on the line, and

         16  then take their next fares until they arrive in

         17  Manhattan, where they work for the remainder of the

         18  day. In terms of passengers, there seems to be no

         19  shortage of people seeking to utilize the service.

         20  That's clear. However, it must be noted that the

         21  intersection in Queens is unique in that it is

         22  highly congested with both pedestrians and traffic

         23  during rush hour and appeared as busy, if not

         24  busier, than the most populated areas of Manhattan

         25  where taxicabs ordinarily find their work.
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          2                 Also, it is clear that a primary

          3  reason for the stand's success is its conveniently

          4  close location to JFK airport and because most

          5  passenger trips are to nearby areas. In sum, while I

          6  commend the Chairman who has worked hard with the

          7  industry and the Port Authority to make the Flushing

          8  stand a success, it is successful in some respects,

          9  but overall in my opinion, this is primarily due to

         10  its unique geographic location, its unusually high

         11  pedestrian congestion and the expenditure of

         12  significant private sector resources and subsidies.

         13                 The companion bill, Intro 473, which

         14  I commend Council Member Garodnick for introducing

         15  and commend him for his intentions, seeks to utilize

         16  the dynamics of taxicab stands to provide incentives

         17  for medallion owners to purchase more alternative

         18  fueled vehicles for use as taxicabs. While this

         19  proposed legislation also, as I said, has the best

         20  of intentions, I do not believe it will provide an

         21  adequate incentive to accomplish its stated goals.

         22  And it may, at the same time, create additional

         23  problems at taxicab stands.

         24                 While the TLC does not currently

         25  staff or operate any taxicab stands in the City,
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          2  there are several that are supervised and managed by

          3  private entities. These privately run stands are

          4  located at Penn Station and Grand Central Station.

          5  The Port Authority also operates taxicab stands at

          6  its Manhattan Bus Terminal, as well as LaGuardia and

          7  JFK airports. The primary function of these stands

          8  is not to attract taxis, but to facilitate the safe

          9  and orderly flow of passengers entering and exiting

         10  taxicabs in highly congested areas where without the

         11  stands, taxicab drivers would compete for passengers

         12  and passengers would aggressively compete with one

         13  another for taxicabs.

         14                 The logistics of sorting vehicles on

         15  the curb in congested areas are complex and it might

         16  be nearly impossible at certain times of the day to

         17  organize the advancement of certain vehicles to the

         18  front of a line on a street already congested with

         19  regular traffic. Furthermore, and most importantly,

         20  shuffling taxicabs out of order in congested areas

         21  may pose serious safety concerns for drivers,

         22  passengers, dispatchers and pedestrians.

         23                 I simply do not believe it would be a

         24  meaningful incentive for medallion owner/operators

         25  that would inspire the purchase of more alternative
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          2  fuel vehicles. The Council and the Administration

          3  recently enacted various incentives that have not

          4  yet had the opportunity to be fully evaluated at

          5  this point, including the issuance of dedicated

          6  medallions, the approval of several vehicles, and

          7  vehicle retirement extensions (as late as a few

          8  weeks ago we just passed regulations about that) not

          9  to mention the inherently significant incentive of

         10  reduced fuel cost that go with every alternative

         11  fuel vehicle.

         12                 Today, I'm happy to report that 329

         13  alternative fuel vehicles are on the streets of New

         14  York City and this is more than any other United

         15  States city. While there is usually no harm in

         16  providing additional incentives, doing so here may

         17  create safety related problems which, in my view,

         18  outweigh any minimal benefits that would be gained

         19  by a priority taxicab queue status.

         20                 Given the various concerns cited

         21  surrounding Intro 401s and 473, the TLC and the

         22  Administration cannot support either of these bills

         23  in their current form. Again, I thank you for

         24  inviting me to testify. I thank you for having the

         25  best of intentions and we would now be happy to
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          2  further engage in dialogue with you and to answer

          3  any questions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          5  Commissioner Daus. Let me note that we have been

          6  joined by Council Member Miguel Martinez from

          7  Manhattan and we congratulate Council Member Vincent

          8  Ignizio for his recent election to the City Council

          9  and welcome him to this Committee as well. Well,

         10  thank you for your testimony, Commissioner.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: You are welcome.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think we have some

         13  things to talk about.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I figured that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And we will have

         16  questions from our colleagues here as well. I think

         17  early on in your testimony, you talked about how

         18  well this two tiered system of street hail yellow

         19  cabs and prearranged livery car services is working

         20  for all of New Yorkers. Does the TLC have any idea

         21  how many illegal street hails are out there are

         22  being -- does the TLC have any idea how many illegal

         23  street hails take place outside the Manhattan

         24  Central Business District?

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: In terms of the
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          2  system, the system was created by the City Council.

          3  That's the first thing. It is in the local laws. In

          4  response to Council Member Koppell's issue that he

          5  raised about cabs going to other parts of the City,

          6  that was a very different time. And the system had

          7  worked --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Exactly the point.

          9  It was 25 years ago.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Twenty- five years

         11  ago and yellow cabs --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The City Council may

         13  have created the system that exists today, but --

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: -- This is why the

         16  City Council is acting to follow up on the requests

         17  of so many constituents and from what we can see in

         18  so many of our districts that illegal street hails

         19  take place all the time.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I'm not sure what

         21   --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: What I'm saying is

         23  that to ask you a question about one of the

         24  fundamental tenets of the TLC's testimony, you talk

         25  about how this dual system of yellow cabs --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: -- That provide

          4  street hails --

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: -- And livery car

          7  services that require the prearrangements, it is

          8  working well.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: My question simply

         11  is, does the TLC have any idea how many illegal

         12  street hails take place every single day in New York

         13  City?

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: There is always

         15  illegal activity whenever you have a license and

         16  people go out and conduct business without it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So it is fine?

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No, it's not that

         19  it is fine.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But don't we have

         21  some way of quantifying --

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Can I answer the

         23  question, Mr. Chairman?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Because you asked
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          2  a good question. The question is why do we believe

          3  that the system works well and I commend the Council

          4  years ago for doing it because I think it makes

          5  sense given the realities. You are talking about the

          6  system itself if somebody goes to the proper

          7  procedures of getting licensed. If the service works

          8  as perfectly as it is intended under the law,

          9  basically you cannot have anything better than door-

         10  to- door service. I don't think anyone can

         11  reasonably believe that on a side street in Coney

         12  Island, you expect a yellow cab to be going up and

         13  down that street.

         14                 The way the FHV system was set up by

         15  the Council years ago, it works. Community car

         16  services which are comprised of members of the

         17  community, hard working families and people who live

         18  and service that area at more economical rates of

         19  fare than taxicabs are there to basically provide a

         20  service which in some respects is even more

         21  convenient and more passenger responsive than yellow

         22  cabs.

         23                 I don't believe when you give and the

         24  Council gives an exclusive right to street hails to

         25  yellow cabs in the last couple of years that we

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  should start talking about issues where maybe the

          3  way the system has been set up should be kind of

          4  altered or dismantled. That's some of the

          5  conversation that I was hearing here.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Matt, I'm trying to

          7  give you the time to answer the question. But you

          8  still haven't answered my question. My question is

          9  very simple. Does the TLC have any idea how many

         10  illegal street hails occur on a daily basis in New

         11  York City?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We have obviously

         13  summons numbers and summons that we issue for the

         14  activity, but obviously the government enforcement

         15  can't be everywhere at all times.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right, exactly.

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Or a magic wand or

         18  a crystal ball.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But we are in our

         20  districts all the time, Commissioner --

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I'm trying to

         22  understand the relationship to the taxi stand bill.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think the relation

         24  is very clear and I'll get to that. The whole idea

         25  that livery car services work well is something that
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          2  is fully and wholly accepted by myself and my

          3  colleagues here. Livery car services, what you term,

          4  the community car services, they work very well.

          5  When someone is at home, they need to go to the

          6  airport or they need to go to Manhattan or they need

          7  to go to a doctor's appointment or wherever they

          8  need to go, call from home or if they know that they

          9  are leaving work and they work in the neighborhood,

         10  call a car service in plenty of advance time, you

         11  know you can wait 20, 30 minutes for that car

         12  service. But the livery for- hire vehicles commonly

         13  known as car services, serve a distinctly different

         14  purpose than yellow cabs that are hailed off the

         15  street do. I think that is acceptable.

         16                 This bill in no way impugns the

         17  validity or the effectiveness of neighborhood car

         18  services, community car services. What we're saying

         19  is that there is a demand for yellow cab service

         20  outside the Manhattan Central Business District that

         21  is clearly not being met by this legal framework

         22  that we have set up in the City 25 years ago. And

         23  now today, it is time for us to address this growing

         24  need, this growing demand so that people don't have

         25  to keep engaging in this illegal activity that there
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          2  is nothing fundamentally wrong with it. There is

          3  nothing wrong with people coming outside -- there is

          4  nothing wrong with people getting off the subway in

          5  Coney Island or in Riverdale or in Flushing or in

          6  other parts of the City and thinking that, you know

          7  what, I wish there was a yellow cab there that I

          8  could jump in right this second as opposed to

          9  picking up the phone and waiting 20, 30 minutes for

         10  the car service to get to that subway station.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I think we are

         12  saying the same thing.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I don't think so.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes, I believe we

         15  are.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think we are

         17  saying --

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: My testimony is

         19  being misconstrued. Can I explain?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We are talking

         22  about the system being set up and functioning the

         23  way the law intended to work. It is working.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We're not saying

         25  that --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: You're looking to

          3  basically enhance the service which we commend. I

          4  think we're basically saying the same thing. If you

          5  bring up illegal street hails and illegal activity,

          6  one of my personal observations at the stand on

          7  Friday and my conversations with the dispatcher is

          8  that the stand has created the opportunity for

          9  additional legal liveries to crash the stand. While

         10  I was there, an equal number of illegal vehicles

         11  pulled up to yellow cabs. When you create a stand

         12  like that, it is serving as a magnet to attract

         13  illegal vehicles and I think that is a consideration

         14  that has to be taken into account.

         15                 If you start bringing up the issue of

         16  illegal street hails, Mr. Chairman, I believe that

         17  if you bring the dispatchers from MTBOT in here,

         18  they will testify on the record that there are

         19  verbal and other confrontations that occur as a

         20  result of the creation of a stand where the

         21  passengers are just looking to be served. Or there

         22  is a yellow cab --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Exactly the point.

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: But there needs to

         25  be as I mentioned in my testimony, there has to be
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          2  some type of oversight of an enforcement nature

          3  because I don't believe that private dispatchers are

          4  equipped to handle situations of conflict. You would

          5  agree with me on that?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And we will hear

          7  from representatives and officials of the industry.

          8  What we're saying is that the City needs to

          9  undertake more of an effort to provide this iconic

         10  and highly coveted yellow cab service to people

         11  outside the Manhattan Central Business District.

         12  That's what we're saying here. And it is absolutely

         13  necessary to bring up the high numbers of illegal

         14  street hails that occur on a daily basis. Why is it

         15  necessary? Because people are demanding a certain

         16  service that for some artificial reason, they are

         17  not getting under today's legal framework. So the

         18  message that this Committee is trying to get to the

         19  Commission and the Administration is that the City

         20  needs to do better to make sure New Yorkers have in

         21  addition the availability of community car services,

         22  the ability to hail a cab immediately off the

         23  street.

         24                 The testimony that you provided today

         25  basically starts out by saying that the system is
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          2  currently working. I will tell you this that the

          3  system today does not work well outside the Central

          4  Business District because there are lots and lots of

          5  people in Brooklyn, in Staten Island, in the Bronx

          6  and in Queens who don't necessarily want to wait 20,

          7  30 minutes for that car service to arrive. Those who

          8  have the luxury of time and can wait for that car

          9  service to arrive, the community car services are

         10  doing phenomenal. They serve the people in the

         11  communities. But there are lots of people who get

         12  off the subway and would like to have a car

         13  immediately.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And they do so. They

         16  do get a car. The problem is that they get the car

         17  illegally. And then there is a lot of enforcement, a

         18  lot of times it is selective enforcement because as

         19  you yourself said, it is not possible for the TLC or

         20  the City to be on top of everybody all at once. A

         21  lot of times, it creates a situation where the

         22  enforcement becomes selective. That is symptomatic

         23  of a system that no longer works as well as it

         24  should. Which is why this bill seeks to ask the City

         25  to reinvest some money.
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          2                 The other reason you site for

          3  opposing this bill, Intro 401, is the cost impact.

          4  Of course, there is a cost impact. The cost impact,

          5  there is always a cost when we try to improve

          6  something that is really at the end of the day a

          7  City immunity and that the City has a responsibility

          8  of improving. Especially when people are getting

          9  something that is technically illegal under today's

         10  law.

         11                 To say that we invest a couple of

         12  million dollars to see what we can do to improve

         13  yellow cab service for all New Yorkers, that's a

         14  small tiny portion of the hundreds of millions of

         15  dollars of windfall profits that the City has raked

         16  in over the last three years. Over the last three

         17  years, 900 some odd medallions have been sold at an

         18  expected price at about $195 million. Instead, the

         19  City has taken in hundreds of thousands of dollars

         20  more than that expected revenue of $195 million. In

         21  the last sale of 300 medallions alone, the City took

         22  in $141 million more than the $65 million it

         23  expected from the sale of those last 300 medallions.

         24                 What we are saying through this bill

         25  is that look, it is time to use just a tiny, tiny
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          2  portion, less than one percent of the total windfall

          3  profits. Put it back into the system to figure out

          4  how we can give New Yorkers the service that they

          5  clearly demand that in fact they are getting every

          6  single day except illegally. It doesn't make sense

          7  that all these New Yorkers have to engage in some

          8  illegal activity because the City refuses to

          9  undertake some effort to give them the service that

         10  they require. Let me turn the floor over to Council

         11  Member Koppell.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Chairman

         13  Daus, are you familiar with the story of the emperor

         14  who was wearing no clothes. Are you familiar with

         15  that story?

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I would

         18  suggest it is a good analogy. I read from testimony

         19  contrary to what you just said, in sum the current

         20  system established by local law and TLC regulations

         21  is able to meet the basic transportation needs of

         22  passengers throughout the City and works well

         23  overall. That's saying that the emperor is wearing

         24  beautiful clothes and comes fully dressed to the

         25  parade. The fact is that the emperor is naked. This
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          2  statement is simply not true. The fact of the matter

          3  is that any day and I welcome you to come any day in

          4  the evening to 231st and Broadway or 242nd and

          5  Broadway and see the people getting of the subway

          6  and getting into cabs that are -- not real cabs,

          7  into cars that are standing there to take them to

          8  their residence. That's an illegal act as the

          9  Chairman said. Everything that the Chairman said is

         10  absolutely true.

         11                 There are, I would guess, tens of

         12  thousands of illegal hails. Now look, we could make

         13  it legal and then maybe we could say well the system

         14  is working. But there is a lot of people in the

         15  industry and elsewhere don't think that is a good

         16  idea. We could say anybody could register their car

         17  and if they get it inspected and insured, they can

         18  pick up people on the street. I'm sure the yellow

         19  cab industry would not be happy with that and I'm

         20  not proposing that at this time. Although, maybe

         21  eventually we'll have to propose that to provide

         22  what you say a system that works well. Because

         23  that's what people want.

         24                 When they get off the subway,

         25  including me, when I get off at 242nd Street because

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  I live up the hill, I want to come down those steps

          3  and have a car there that I can get into and pay a

          4  reasonable fair to go home. You know what, that car

          5  is mostly there now. Not all the time. But most the

          6  time it is there. But it is an illegal car and it

          7  charges $4 or $5 which isn't unreasonable and takes

          8  me up the hill. There is no other car there. There

          9  is no yellow car there and there is no livery car

         10  there because they are not allowed to be. The yellow

         11  cabs don't choose to be there and the livery cabs

         12  are not allowed to be there because they have to be

         13  called on the telephone.

         14                 What I say to you as you are in

         15  charge of this for the City of New York and you have

         16  a system that is like the emperor's naked, you have

         17  a naked system. A system that does not work that

         18  forces people including me, and I'm saying this

         19  publicly and acknowledging it, to violate the law if

         20  you will or to take a driver who is violating the

         21  law to take me because there is no reasonable

         22  alternative that's there. It is not a system that

         23  works well. If you don't like this yellow cab idea,

         24  which I think is an interesting experiment, then

         25  come up with something else. But don't tell me you

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  have a system that works well because your system

          3  doesn't work well. It is as simple as that. And for

          4  you to come here and say the system works well,

          5  don't change anything. Frankly, it is a dereliction

          6  of your duty. I like you. You are a nice person. But

          7  this is an outrage. This is not a good system. It

          8  doesn't work well. It forces people to violate the

          9  law and it puts people into cars that are not

         10  properly inspected and properly insured.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Could I respond to

         12  that?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, please.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: First of all,

         15  Council Member, out of respect for you, I know we

         16  have difference of opinion, I believe with all due

         17  respect my testimony is being a little distorted.

         18  Certainly, I don't like the reference to an emperor.

         19  I don't think it is right. But if you are going to

         20  make the analogy, the emperor is just wearing the

         21  clothes that the Council laid out for the emperor

         22  and wears them quite well.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I don't say

         24   --

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: If I could finish,
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          2  if I could finish. You had your say, with all due

          3  respect. The emperor is wearing the clothes that the

          4  Council laid out 25 years ago when it changed the

          5  law. The reason why there is no yellow cabs in your

          6  district is because the radios were taken out of the

          7  cars. That's why they are not up there anymore. It

          8  is a very, very different system. My concern is for

          9  the reason cited in the testimony that we're going

         10  to use taxpayer funded money, millions of dollars to

         11  invest in an idea and I'm not saying there aren't

         12  other ideas out there that might work, an idea which

         13  works well in Flushing, but may not work in the

         14  Bronx.

         15                 I don't see how taxicab drivers are

         16  going to go from Manhattan all the way up to the

         17  Bronx to get a shorty ticket or something of that

         18  nature to basically go all the way to the East to go

         19  to the airports. I'm just testifying not as to the

         20  concept, I'm testifying as to the specific ideas in

         21  the bill and we're willing to have a dialogue about

         22  it. But with all due respect, I believe there is

         23  nothing worse than -- you'll have an emperor with no

         24  clothes situation if you and the Council vote for

         25  having stands in the Bronx and everybody is all
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          2  dressed up with no place to go. At all the yellow

          3  cabs that basically you think are going to go there

          4  don't show up and then everybody has egg on their

          5  face.

          6                 I think that is really to just turn

          7  it around and look at a different perspective, I

          8  think that's what the real issue is. We're not

          9  saying that we are not open to ideas and exploring

         10  it. I think much to the Chairman's credit, without

         11  the government's involvement, which was a wonderful

         12  thing. If you don't need the government's

         13  involvement, why involve the government? The

         14  Chairman without any legislation worked with private

         15  industry to establish a very successful stand. It is

         16  just my professional transportation point of view

         17  that I believe it is a very unique stand in an

         18  unique part of the City. What works in Flushing may

         19  not work on 231st and Broadway, Council Member.

         20  That's my only point. With all due respect to you, I

         21  respect you a lot and I respect your opinion. You

         22  are very, very wise public servant and we just

         23  disagree on this.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         25  could I just ask one question? I won't make another
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          2  statement. Just a question. If this doesn't work,

          3  how do we get it so that people who get off the

          4  train and 231st and Broadway can get a car to take

          5  them up the hill in a legal way?

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It's a good

          7  question that we want to explore further. I think it

          8  is actually and again, I think the misinterpretation

          9  of that sentence in my testimony was that the system

         10  that the Council and the Administration 25 years ago

         11  set up functions the way it was set up to function.

         12  I'm not saying that we can't enhance and shouldn't

         13  always be looking to enhance the service. That is

         14  what this all about. You are basically looking at

         15  response times being pretty good. Most people in all

         16  neighborhoods of the City now have cell phones.

         17                 You could basically dial in and plug

         18  in the number of your favorite car service in there

         19  and they will be waiting for you when you get off

         20  the train. Some car services take longer than

         21  others. But I understand that most New Yorkers want

         22  the convenience of yellow cabs just flying by and

         23  putting your hand up and in some areas of the City

         24  practically under the current system, it will work

         25  and in others it won't.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: All I'm

          3  asking is that there be cabs. I'm not asking that

          4  they be in front of every house. I realize that is

          5  unrealistic. All I'm asking is that the major

          6  transportation points where right now there is a

          7  very busy trade by the illegal car industry that in

          8  those areas that trade be made legal. And if this

          9  doesn't work, what I haven't seen and you I have

         10  been agitating about this since I got elected.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I want to see

         13  a suggestion from you, sir, of an alternative. Not

         14  to say that everything is fine. Whether the Council

         15  did a good job or not, it doesn't matter. I wasn't

         16  here. Maybe we didn't do a good job. We need to have

         17  a system that doesn't make me feel like I'm breaking

         18  the law to get home.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We will work with

         20  you on that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The problem is that

         22  I don't think we are working together on this.

         23  Because the problem is that you keep saying, well

         24  maybe the TLC and the Administration don't agree

         25  with the specific ideas proposed in our bill here.
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          2  But you are basically through your testimony

          3  shooting down the entire bill without coming up with

          4  any suggestions whatsoever. These clothes that the

          5  emperor were given 25 years ago were when the

          6  emperor was a toddler. Twenty- five years later, it

          7  is time to get new clothes. And that's what this

          8  bill is proposing. In fact, this is what our

          9  dialogues over the last five years have talked

         10  about, the need to get some new clothes on the

         11  emperor who is now a grown person.

         12                 In fact, the Administration has

         13  failed to come up with any ideas whatsoever on

         14  addressing a very real issue of New Yorkers getting

         15  the service that they need, but only in an illegal

         16  manner. When you say that we want to work together,

         17  it has been five years. We have been talking about

         18  this for five years. We have.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I would

         20  respectfully disagree with that. There hasn't been a

         21  single piece of legislation since I testified five

         22  years ago and we have a very minimal amount of

         23  conversations with this Council about this. This has

         24  just come up recently again after the medallions

         25  sales have gone through and now we are talking about
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          2  issues which if many medallion owners that plopped

          3  their money on the table to buy these medallions

          4  would have known may have thought about twice about

          5  quite frankly.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's absolutely

          7  not true. If anything, the idea that people would

          8  spread the wealth of the medallions all across the

          9  five boroughs, that would have enhanced the

         10  medallions, not deteriorate it, the value of the

         11  medallions. Again, we have been talking about this

         12  for a number of years, for five years. Now you may

         13  say, well we haven't had a hearing about this issue

         14  specifically. But in fact, it has come up numerous

         15  times through budget hearings. Every time we ask for

         16  an update about the medallion sales, this issue has

         17  come up of what it is, when are we going to reinvest

         18  some of this money back into the industry so that

         19  people can get better yellow cab service.

         20                 The problem seems to be that the

         21  Administration doesn't think there is any issue that

         22  needs to be dealt with. I don't think we are

         23  misreading this. To say that through this testimony

         24  that the current system established by local law,

         25  the City Council 25 years ago and TLC regulations is
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          2  able to meet the basic transportation needs of

          3  passengers throughout the City and works well over

          4  all, I don't think we are misreading that. That

          5  statement says to us, well nothing is broke, so

          6  nothing needs to be fixed.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I don't believe

          8  anything is broke. Well, you are talking about --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's because the

         10  TLC is blinded to the problem that exists out there.

         11  The TLC doesn't even have any idea how many illegal

         12  street hails are occurring on a daily basis. I would

         13  submit that the TLC get out there and do a better

         14  job of assessing what kinds of on street hail needs,

         15  the riding public here in New York City require. The

         16  problem is that the TLC doesn't even have any idea

         17  how much illegal activity is going on.

         18                 Illegal activity, not fundamentally

         19  wrong, but simply the demands of the public not

         20  being meet by the current legal framework. That is

         21  something that the City and we stand ready to work

         22  with you and the Administration to fix. But we

         23  haven't heard any ideas from the Administration.

         24  We've only heard that the current system works well.

         25  Well, it ain't working. It ain't working for most
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          2  New Yorkers. We have questions from Council Member

          3  Garodnick.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chairman. I'm going to put aside the emperor and

          6  his clothing for a moment and turn your attention to

          7  Intro 473.

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Sure.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I was

         10  interested in your testimony. It sounded like your

         11  main objection to the idea of providing incentives

         12  for clean fuel taxis to go ahead of the line is

         13  logistical. You said that it might be nearly

         14  impossible to organize. On what basis do you say

         15  that?

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: After observing

         17  stands as I have personally, it is just not feasible

         18  at some of the locations that are set up right now.

         19  There is not enough space to have two lines at Penn

         20  Station, at Grand Central. Number two, if you did it

         21  at the airports in most of the terminals, it would

         22  be logistically problematic. And on any given line

         23  right now, I mean I was at the Flushing stand on

         24  Friday, there were like several hybrids that pulled

         25  up. What happening is I think other incentives are
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          2  already working to get more cabs on the road.

          3                 It is logistically problematic as

          4  cabs just pull off into the stand and line up to

          5  actually have to extricate one cab, have it back up

          6  or move out and pull another cab that might be all

          7  the way in the back. It is a logistical problem and

          8  while I commend you for the idea, it is certainly an

          9  idea that may work if you had a stand where you had

         10  several lanes where people could be segregated and

         11  cars could be segregated. The practical reality is

         12  that in the stands that currently exist that

         13  wouldn't work. It certainly wouldn't work at the

         14  Flushing stand.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Of course,

         16  we are exploring the possibility of some new stands

         17  here today.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's right. And

         19  I read it as a companion bill.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I guess my

         21  point here is, it is not clear to me that we have

         22  considered all the possibilities as to how you might

         23  be able to logistically accomplish what we are

         24  trying to do here. You are talking about cars

         25  backing up, replacing them with hybrids. It could
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          2  conceivably be done with changing, creating new

          3  lanes and directional signage for different types of

          4  taxis. There is a system as you described in your

          5  testimony at the airports, is there not, for certain

          6  people to bypass a line --

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: -- Under

          9  the shorty system.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's at a

         11  central hold and that may be an interesting concept.

         12  Granted, I understand it is clear that the intent of

         13  this bill is to be an companion if you were to get

         14  more of the stands that the Chairman was talking

         15  about. But then there is this other issue whether it

         16  is an incentive that will work and while I'm of the

         17  opinion the more incentives the better, I just don't

         18  believe when you do a cost benefit analysis it

         19  passes muster at this point under the current stand

         20  system. And also I don't believe an individual

         21  medallion owner who is sitting on the fence saying I

         22  want to buy a hybrid who is going to do it because

         23  they are going to get queue status at a stand. They

         24  are going to do it because they are going to get

         25  increased fuel economy.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I want to

          3  talk to you about the incentives in one second. I

          4  want to stay on the logistics for just a moment.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I just want

          7  to get a complete understanding from you about the

          8  possibilities that you considered for this sort of

          9  priority system when you said that it might be

         10  nearly impossible. It sounds to me like your

         11  testimony was based on your consideration of the

         12  current taxi stands as they are today either at Penn

         13  Station or in Flushing.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Under those

         16  particular set ups today --

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: -- In your

         19  view, is it fair to say that you think it would be

         20  logistically difficult there?

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes, in one lane

         22  taxi stands on congested streets, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay. Is it

         24  also fair to say that you could envision a situation

         25  possibly where you could create a flow of traffic
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          2  where it might not be nearly impossible to organize?

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Of course you have

          4  to look at the geography and so forth, but with

          5  respect again to it as an incentive, I still think

          6  it is --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Wait, hold

          8  on incentive. I want to stay on the logistical piece

          9  for a second.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: As we are

         12  considering the possible location for additional

         13  taxi stands, one of the factors could of course be

         14  not only the demand or it seems to be in my view and

         15  certainly how I represent the east side of

         16  Manhattan, the demand is there. From what I hear my

         17  colleagues from Queens and the Bronx in particular

         18  right now, they are articulating not only a lot of

         19  demand, but also a lot of demand and a lot of use of

         20  illegal street hails. But if we were to consider all

         21  these possibilities as criteria for placing new taxi

         22  stands including space which would allow for

         23  prioritization of hybrid taxis, couldn't that work?

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That is something

         25  that we have to look at the geography, yes. Of
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          2  course, we would defer to our partners, the

          3  Department of Transportation ultimately has the sign

          4  off on and they have a lot of factors that they look

          5  at in terms of how they decide whether a stand makes

          6  sense and also the Police Department. When we look

          7  to put a taxi relief stand or a pick up stand

          8  anywhere in the City, we have a process where the

          9  TLC finds out whether there is a need for it. The

         10  DOT conducts a site visit. We did that with the

         11  Chairman years ago for a commuter van stand. Then

         12  the Police Department gets involved as well as to

         13  the safety aspect. Certainly, what you are saying

         14  could make sense. You have an interesting couple of

         15  cab stands on York Avenue in your district.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: It's not

         17  mine, but close.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay, sorry about

         19  that. You are right on the border there. Basically,

         20  that is of course a possibility in a perfect world.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: As far as I

         22  know, the DOT has not weighed in on the subject of

         23  whether they could devise an appropriate street

         24  scape design so as to allow for prioritization of

         25  hybrid taxis if we were to find the right geography
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          2  as you described. Is that right?

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We have been in

          4  consultation with DOT about our testimony. I'm

          5  speaking on behalf of our agency and the

          6  Administration including DOT.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: The

          8  Administration does not support these bills because

          9  they view them as one logistical problem and because

         10  you don't believe there would be demand for

         11  additional --

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: -- Taxi

         14  stands in the outer boroughs.

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: If I

         17  understand it correctly.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Also your bill is

         19  obviously contingent upon the passage of 401.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Correct.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Now I understand

         22  your intentions being clear. It was not clear to us

         23  at first when we read the bill as to whether you

         24  were also looking to turn some of these taxi pick up

         25  stands that already exist into stands where queue
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          2  status would be applicable.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Mr.

          4  Chairman, would your view on the bill change if we

          5  were to apply the hybrid priority system only to the

          6  new taxi stands as opposed to the existing ones?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Why not?

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I don't believe

         10  that taxi drivers are going to buy a vehicle because

         11  of that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: But you are

         13  talking about the incentive issue again.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Again, I

         16  really just want to stay on the logistics for a

         17  second. From a logistical perspective, would you

         18  reconsider your opposition to the view just on

         19  logistics?

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We would take a

         21  look at it contingent to DOT and NYPD approval

         22  obviously.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Let's talk

         24  about the safety concerns. You noted it might pose

         25  safety concerns for drivers, passengers, dispatchers
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          2  and pedestrians. First on the dispatchers, can you

          3  just articulate what you mean by safety concerns for

          4  dispatchers?

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, the

          6  dispatchers stand on the sidewalk, but they often go

          7  into the lanes to talk to the drivers and facilitate

          8  passengers getting into and out of the car to have

          9  them actually work the stand and get cars to who

         10  have pulled in to back up out into traffic may put

         11  the dispatcher in harms way if the dispatcher is

         12  moving in and about the curbside space.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Your note

         14  on safety concerns was really based on a concept of

         15  Penn Station --

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: -- As a

         18  taxi stand --

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Or any single taxi

         20  stand.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: -- As

         22  opposed to the new 21st century outer borough new

         23  top ten taxi stands with hybrid priority status.

         24  Right? You were thinking really of the existing

         25  system as to the opposed to the possibilities of new
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          2  stands. Is that right?

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, each stand

          4  has its unique characteristics, its unique

          5  geography. You have to really do a case by case

          6  analysis and assessment. Obviously, we won't rule

          7  out any possibility that there could be a stand in

          8  any part of the City that could accomplish those

          9  goals without impairing safety. But you have to

         10  really look at how you are going to set it up

         11  logistically. Are you going to have two separate

         12  areas? Are you going to have people being pulled in

         13  and pulled out? Those are things that we would need

         14  to discuss and also on a case by case basis, you

         15  would need to get not only our input, but the

         16  Department of Transportation's input as well as the

         17  Police Department to determine that there is not

         18  going to be a safety risk imposed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: That sounds

         20  fair. But then it also sort of sounds to me that you

         21  are willing to conceive of a taxi stand that could

         22  both logistically and from a matter of public safety

         23  accomplish the goals that Intro 473 is trying to

         24  accomplish. Again, putting aside the incentives.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I don't mean --
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          2  right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I'm talking

          4  about safety and logistics only right now.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So from

          7  those two perspectives, I don't want to

          8  mischaracterize anything you have said, but it

          9  sounds to me that looking at the potential for new

         10  taxi stands, you can conceive of a possibility

         11  provided that DOT and NYPD --

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We could always

         13  conceive possibilities. I don't mean to be

         14  difficult, but I think that ultimately the bill

         15  would not provide the incentives. But you are going

         16  to separate the discussion, I agree with you that

         17  yes, of course, there is a conceivable possibility.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So it is

         19  not impossible?

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Of course, it is

         21  not impossible.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And it is

         23  not nearly impossible?

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No, I think under

         25  the current system that we have --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Right.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: -- Which we

          4  interpreted the bill, it is nearly impossible.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Under the

          6  current system. But again, I'm not talking about the

          7  current system. I'm talking about --

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, I was in my

          9  testimony.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, I'm

         11  understand. That's why I'm just trying to separate

         12   --

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I feel like I'm

         14  being cross examined.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I just want

         16  to separate you from your testimony because I think

         17  your testimony was focused on Penn Station and the

         18  existing one lane taxi stands as opposed what might

         19  be the future of taxi stands something --

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: -- Which is

         22  a brand new scenario that we are talking about.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay. Let's

         25  just talk about, since I know you want to talk about
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          2  demand, let's talk about demand for a second.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: It sounds

          5  to me that from what I heard from your testimony

          6  before, you don't believe that there would be the

          7  demand for these ten stands that we might

          8  anticipate. Is that fair?

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Overall, I don't

         10  know if there is a supply that would be sufficient

         11  to staff ten stands. That was the concerns that I

         12  have raised based upon the dynamics of the way the

         13  industry operates, the way the system is set up.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I'm sorry.

         15  The staff being the staff who monitors -- you are

         16  talking about cabs.

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Cabs.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Yes, cabs.

         19  You don't think there would be sufficient cabs to

         20  keep the flow of ten.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We have supply

         22  concerns. Not demand, supply concerns.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay. I

         24  see. The demand is there, the supply might not be

         25  there.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Under the current

          3  system, yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: If the

          5  demand is there and there would be people who would

          6  want to use those taxi stands, why wouldn't it be an

          7  incentive for any taxi, frankly, to go there let

          8  alone a hybrid which would be able to go to the

          9  front of the line?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It has to do with

         11  the way the system is set up. Basically, by law

         12  there are given as independent contractors and

         13  entrepreneurs the ability, once they buy that

         14  medallion to go anywhere in the City that they would

         15  like to go. They are not told where to go, with the

         16  exception of obviously prohibitions of against

         17  refusing service to passengers who may hail them

         18  anywhere. The way the system is designed is that

         19  they can go where they want to go. It is the leading

         20  the horse to water concept. When there is an ocean

         21  of water to drink in Manhattan, why would they go

         22  for a puddle in the outer reaches of the City.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I was

         24  learning from your testimony. When you said that cab

         25  drivers who live in the area say the Flushing stand
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          2  might go there or go directly to the airport as

          3  their first trip --

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right. But the

          5  Flushing --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: -- And then

          7  spend the rest of the day in Manhattan as you

          8  described it. But if there were more of these taxi

          9  stands, wouldn't that create more opportunity to

         10  create more circulation of taxis in the non-

         11  Manhattan boroughs?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It depends on the

         13  geography. I think Flushing is very, very unique. I

         14  believe that the intersection at Roosevelt and Main

         15  is probably more densely congested with pedestrians

         16  than almost anywhere in the City of New York and

         17  Manhattan. If you just sit there and watch the

         18  plethora of people going by, it is a lake. It's not

         19  an ocean. It is a lake. You have drivers going there

         20  because they are guaranteed they are going to get a

         21  quick fare and they are going to go to the airport.

         22  I think you have this whole trap in Manhattan

         23  scenario that plays out by the way the law is

         24  structured, by the way the meter works and by the

         25  demand for the service being what it is.
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          2                 The way cab drivers make most of

          3  their money on the meters by one short trip after

          4  another. And, of course, getting an airport trip

          5  every once in a while. But the airport trips are

          6  there and most drivers go there so they can into

          7  Manhattan. Once they get into Manhattan by abiding

          8  by the laws that the Council and the TLC put into

          9  place, they cannot refuse service to any individual.

         10  Most of the individuals based on our studies tend to

         11  stay within Manhattan. There is only about eight

         12  percent of people who even request to go outside of

         13  Manhattan.

         14                 How do you get people that are doing

         15  their job, abiding by the law, once they get into

         16  Manhattan who get trapped in Manhattan, how do you

         17  logistically then get them to go to the outer

         18  reaches of Coney Island or to the Bronx. It is just

         19  not practical under the current system. That was my

         20  testimony. The system was set up this way.

         21  Medallions was sold to people based upon these

         22  representations to them. It is the horse to water

         23  theory. You can't get a horse to go to water and

         24  force it to drink.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: If you were
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          2  to set up additional taxi stands and let's say that

          3  you were not right about this scenario where the

          4  flow wouldn't work. Let's say instead of ten, you

          5  set up eight. They are perfectly placed. There is a

          6  great series flow of taxis to them and it surprises

          7  everybody. It surprises the Commission that in fact

          8  there is both supply and demand that they work.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Let me just

         11  ask you the question about the hybrids. Why would

         12  not a hybrid taxi driver take advantage or see that

         13  as an incentive that they can actually go to the

         14  front of such a line whether it were at any line

         15  where there were a crowd. Wouldn't that be an

         16  incentive for the owner of a hybrid medallion?

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Only if they are

         18  empty and they are in the area. The bottom line is

         19  that they have plenty of other money to make. Of

         20  course, it depends on the incentive. My testimony,

         21  Council Member, is based upon the system as it is

         22  with no incentive other than going to a stand. Of

         23  course, if you give an all expense paid trip to

         24  Aruba, they are going to show up by the millions. If

         25  you give them a reduced lease fees which is how the
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          2  Flushing stand got off the ground, you may have a

          3  chance at success.

          4                 Once you take the incentives away,

          5  the subsidization by private industry which was

          6  there at the Flushing stand, I don't believe the cab

          7  drivers would be going there unless you had the

          8  shorty tickets. That's just my opinion. Actually

          9  that's what they basically told me. It is no skin

         10  off their back to show up there when they are

         11  starting their shift or most of the people I

         12  recognize some of them and I know some of the

         13  drivers that showed up. I've seen them at places and

         14  they basically told me or live in the area.

         15                 We had people from local Sikh temples

         16  that I met that were hanging out there. They

         17  basically go there and because they are going to get

         18  a shorty ticket and they are going to cut the line

         19  at the airport. It is as simple as that. I think

         20  obviously the incentive is where it is all at. But I

         21  guess it is really a philosophical question as to

         22  whether government provides the incentive or where

         23  the private industry does. There is nothing

         24  preventing any one of the Council Members here from

         25  doing what John Liu, Council Member Liu did in his
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          2  district. There is nothing absolutely preventing you

          3  from going out legally and getting a local business

          4  improvement district, local taxi industry and

          5  setting up a stand. He did it much to his credit.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

          7  for that. I was glad to hear just as I finish up

          8  here and I know there is a lot of questions from

          9  other colleagues that there are some scenarios which

         10  we might be able to explore together --

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: -- With the

         13  other agencies of the Administration to try to

         14  construct the modern day taxi stand. Obviously it is

         15  companion to everything that is going on today, but

         16  I appreciate your openness to that logistical issue.

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: You are very

         18  welcome.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         21  Member Garodnick. Just a quick note about the

         22  Flushing cab stand. The focus of Intro 401, the taxi

         23  stand bill, that seeks to create these taxi stands

         24  in places that makes sense just as heavily congested

         25  transit hubs in New York City outside the Manhattan
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          2  Central Business District. You keep bringing up the

          3  Flushing stand has having been successful. That is

          4  true. Flushing though is not the only heavily

          5  congested transit hub in New York City and that's

          6  why the bill simply calls upon the City to create

          7  these stands in a pilot program, to see where else

          8  it might work.

          9                 The problem is that without even

         10  trying and worse yet, without even understanding the

         11  extent to which illegal street hails occur on a

         12  daily basis in New York, we will never be able to

         13  improve the service for all New Yorkers. Incentives

         14  or otherwise, there are plenty of cab drivers who

         15  use the incentives. There are plenty of cab drivers

         16  who frequent that stop, that stand in Flushing which

         17  is why we have cabs there not just at the beginning

         18  of the day, not just at the end of the day, but all

         19  throughout the entire shift. Because the beauty of

         20  the stand is not the incentive. The beauty of the

         21  stand is that we match the supply with the demand so

         22  that the public knows where to go to get a cab and

         23  that cab drivers know where to go to get passengers.

         24  But the problem is that without even trying it in

         25  other parts of the City where there are clearly are
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          2  heavily congested transit hubs, we will never be

          3  able to improve that kind of service.

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Mr. Chairman, if I

          5  could just very, very briefly respond to that. I

          6  understand what you are saying. I think that the

          7  distinguish is not just logistical, it is

          8  philosophical. In my opinion, I just don't believe

          9  when you are able to do this on your own that

         10  government should be paying for it. It's that

         11  simple.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The government is --

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Is one of the

         14  reasons I objected to this bill. I don't have the

         15  money in my budget right now.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: If this is truly a

         17  private enterprise and government had nothing to do

         18  with it, then fine. It should come from the private

         19  sector. The problem here is that the government

         20  actually has its hands deep in the pocket of the

         21  industry. That's why -- Yes.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: What's that

         23  suppose to mean?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It means that this

         25  is not a pure private sector enterprise. It is
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          2  something that is licensed by the City and this is

          3  why the City is able to reap hundreds of millions of

          4  dollars of windfall profits from the industry. The

          5  point of this bill is that because it is not purely

          6  a private enterprise industry, that the City is very

          7  much partners in this industry. That the City also

          8  at the same time as we require the taxicab industry

          9  to invest in credit card processing and GPS systems,

         10  that we as a City ought to think about the numbers

         11  of New Yorkers out there who need this kind of

         12  service, but can only do so today on an illegal

         13  basis. Questions from Council Member Martinez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chair. Commissioner --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm sorry, Council

         17  Member Martinez. Let me just acknowledge that we've

         18  also been joined by members of this Committee,

         19  Council Member Darlene Mealy from Brooklyn, Council

         20  Member Joe Addabbo from Queens and Council Member

         21  Diana Reyna from Brooklyn. Thank you, Council Member

         22  Martinez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Oh, you are

         24  quite welcome. We already established that the

         25  emperor is not naked. Clothes just fit him small.
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          2  Commissioner, you state that the overall

          3  responsibility of TLC is to develop an overall

          4  transportation strategy for demand, to respond to

          5  the demand of riders. Right.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Um- hum.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: You also

          8  keep making reference to the Flushing stand which

          9  again was a stand that I think we are getting a

         10  clear message there from owners. My understanding

         11  that some of the funding that were put together were

         12  also by owners of medallions to put together this

         13  stand as an experimental stand to see how it would

         14  work. I think that owners there are saying opposite

         15  to what you are saying that stands could work and

         16  owners would be willing to make sure that cabs do go

         17  to these stands and that cabs do commute in a

         18  community.

         19                 I would just make an example to

         20  Council Member Diana Reyna that if there was to be a

         21  stand in Fordham Row for example and I was to take a

         22  cab from Fordham Row to my district across the

         23  bridge, that cab in essence would be commuting in

         24  that area once I get off that cab and another person

         25  would have an opportunity to get into that cab. I
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          2  think the chain reaction that will happen in our

          3  communities where we don't see cabs. The same is

          4  true if that cab was to go to Oliver Koppell's

          5  district once he gets off and so forth.

          6                 It makes me uncomfortable, I get a

          7  sense you are so much against the idea, but in an

          8  perspective of defending owners and not the riding

          9  public. Because when you say owners won't do it,

         10  drivers won't go, well I think that's the role that

         11  TLC has in terms of regulating the industry and I

         12  want to ask you a question about that. You keep

         13  making reference also to the local law, but does TLC

         14  have it within your jurisdiction to dictate or to

         15  put regulation that would require drivers to go to

         16  these stands? It would require cabs to be in certain

         17  areas. You also made reference to the dedicated

         18  medallions. I want to hear a little bit more about

         19  that where we are with dedicated medallions.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I'm not sure

         21  Council Member if we have legal authority to do

         22  that. I believe the Council may have to change its

         23  laws if you were going to force cabs to go to other

         24  parts. We do have the passengers very much in mind.

         25  If you start mandating cabs to go into places where
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          2  they are going to get one or two trips and be stuck

          3  there, there is going to be less cabs to serve

          4  passengers in other highly congested areas.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Can I stop

          6  you there?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: But most --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No, no, I

          9  need to stop you there. Because that's the mentality

         10  and when you send a message as a person who

         11  regulates the industry that they are only going to

         12  get two or three fares, I think the example I laid

         13  out previously. If I'm in Fordham Row, I grab a

         14  yellow cab --

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: -- Come to

         17  my district. Once I'm off, there are other

         18  individuals in that community and I will tell you

         19  that I have a lot of liveries and they still are not

         20  meeting the demand because there is such a high

         21  demand for people who want to commute and need

         22  transportation. Even though I have a lot of liveries

         23  in my district, sometimes I call them and their

         24  phones are busy. That's how busy they are. They are

         25  very busy. They have high demands. If I grab a cab
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          2  in Fordham Row, I will guarantee you that someone

          3  else will get in that cab. He will probably go from

          4  Dyckman who will go to 191st Street and someone else

          5  will grab him. I mean that's what they are suppose

          6  to be doing, commuting through our communities,

          7  short rides and long rides.

          8                 I think the message and what we need

          9  to start hearing from you, it will work. There is a

         10  possibility that it will work because we have

         11  individuals in our communities that want and need

         12  these cabs because they have the demand for

         13  transportation. We have the demands in our

         14  communities. So all the times you say that if a

         15  yellow cab comes to my district, you don't think

         16  that he is going to be able to survive in that area

         17  because there isn't just the demand. The demand is

         18  there.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: The demand is

         20  there, but the cabs are not going to go. Look, I

         21  know you all want me to tell you what you want to

         22  hear is that yes, it is a great idea. In my opinion,

         23  and I have no interest other than doing the right

         24  thing as someone who is regulating transportation, I

         25  don't want to see millions of taxpayer dollars to be
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          2  allocated to something which I believe in my heart

          3  is not going to work under the current system. If

          4  you are talking about mandates and all sorts of

          5  other things, that's a totally different discussion.

          6  But if you are asking me, giving the system as it

          7  is, whether putting a stand on Fordham Row is going

          8  to attract yellow cab drivers and we are all going

          9  to get up there and hold a press conference together

         10  and say, yes, this is a wonderful idea. It is going

         11  to service the community and then there is not a

         12  single cab to be found and livery cabs are going to

         13  be crashing the stands because you know as well as I

         14  do, it is turf issue in certain neighborhoods.

         15                 We tried to put a cab stand in Harlem

         16  years ago when I was first appointed and we got

         17  opposition from the community board. There was a big

         18  ruckus situation up there where the liveries didn't

         19  want to have the yellow cabs coming in. I think that

         20  is a reality that has been perpetuated by the law

         21  that was passed 25 years ago. Once you pass that law

         22  and you --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Did you say

         24  that Flushing -- whoa.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL: The
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          2  Chairman had to attend another Committee meeting for

          3  a few minutes. He will be back.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I didn't

          5  know you were there. You look different, Mr.

          6  Chairman.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL: That's

          8  true. I know there is a lot of feeling, including by

          9  me, but let's try and do one at a time. Let the

         10  Chairman finish and then you can ask the next

         11  question.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL: If you

         14  just conclude --

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I did.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL: Okay,

         17  Councilman.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:

         19  Commissioner, you do agree that Flushing works

         20  because there is that collaboration between owners.

         21  Right? Owners of medallions.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It works because

         23  it is close to the airport and they is an incentive.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No, no, in

         25  terms of getting cabs there. Owners encourage
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          2  drivers to go there. We're not saying this is

          3  happening on a vacuum that you put up a stand and

          4  all of sudden, you get drivers there. No, you have

          5  collaboration --

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: They encourage

          7  them by giving them money.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: --

          9  Encouragement of owners getting drivers over there.

         10  Am I correct? That's my understanding.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: There is no better

         12  incentive than money in the pocket which is what

         13  they got to start the stand.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But is there

         15  that collaboration between owners to get drivers

         16  there. Other than that, is there that collaboration.

         17  This is not happening in a vacuum where you put a

         18  stand and owners are not involved.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, yes, it was

         20  a collaboration between a trade organization of

         21  owners, the Chairman --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So owners

         23  are involved?

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: That
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          2  collaboration is important.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: And it was

          4  voluntary.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Good. That's

          6  important. Can you tell me about the dedicated

          7  medallions where we are with that, if we are

          8  anywhere? You mentioned it --

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: The alternative

         10  fuel vehicles?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Huh? You

         12  mentioned in your statement that there are various

         13  initiatives that you have not gotten the opportunity

         14  to fully evaluate --

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: -- Including

         17  the issues of dedicated medallions and the approval

         18  of I believe, several vehicles and vehicle

         19  retirement extensions.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right. What I

         21  meant by that is we have 329 alternative fuel

         22  vehicles on the road as taxicabs, more than any

         23  other City in the United States, more being added by

         24  the day. The dedicated medallions I was talking

         25  about is the legislation that the Council passed and
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          2  the Mayor signed allocating a certain number of

          3  medallions as part of the sale to be operated with

          4  alternative fuel vehicles. But also, since

          5  alternative fuel vehicles saves drivers, again the

          6  best incentive is money in the pocket, the fuel cost

          7  savings is incredible on these vehicles. As drivers

          8  are retiring their vehicles and they are required by

          9  law to buy new ones, they are putting alternative

         10  fuel vehicles on the road because they are going to

         11  save money. They are also helping the environment.

         12                 The one thing that we did recently,

         13  as recently as last month, was to implement the

         14  Council's local law that you passed giving extra

         15  time to keep your vehicle on the road if is

         16  alternative fuel. So what I mean by not having had

         17  the chance to evaluate it, we just passed the law a

         18  few weeks ago, I think it is going to take several

         19  months if not longer, to see as people start

         20  retiring their vehicles, are they going to opt to

         21  buy one of the old Crown Victoria's or they are

         22  going to buy one of the new hybrids. That's what I

         23  meant.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Got it. So

         25  finally, Commissioner, if the Council as a body as
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          2  you keep -- it is a difficult situation when as a

          3  person who represents many of the livery car

          4  industry, they are heavily regulated and one of the

          5  biggest issue is some of the operations that are

          6  taking place by TLC in terms of regulating, when you

          7  go out there and you do your regulation and you do

          8  your thing and at that same time hearing examples

          9  such as Council Member Koppell mentioned where you

         10  had individuals that are not even licensed by TLC

         11  and are picking up people in the street. Then you

         12  also have this situation of not having the vehicles

         13  that have the authority to do street hails, not

         14  seeing them in your community.

         15                 Having said that, if this body, the

         16  Council were to adopt the proposal by Council Member

         17  Liu, Chair Liu, that we make it a mandate that a

         18  percentage of the monies that are generated and I

         19  would say percentage of the money and percentage of

         20  the revenues that are generated through the TLC, by

         21  TLC via your regulations and fines and so forth,

         22  which we would say that a percentage of those

         23  dollars should be dedicated within the budget. Line

         24  item in the budget for your agency, for the

         25  establishment of these stands. Because one of your
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          2  biggest concerns as you mentioned is that you don't

          3  have the money to do this.

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's right under

          5  the current budget.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But yet you

          7  generate the revenues that would allow you to do it

          8  through the sale of medallions and so forth.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: But that doesn't

         10  go into our budget, it goes to the general fund.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: If the

         12  Council make sure or put into legislation that these

         13  dollars that you generate, a percentage of the

         14  dollars that you generate would be invested or used

         15  for the personnel and for the establishment of the

         16  stand, you would have that within your agency to

         17  fully mandate it and regulate it and run it.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: With all due

         19  respect --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Would you

         21  then be supportive of it? Because the main issue

         22  right now is not having the resources to do this.

         23  We're saying, you generate the revenues, but you

         24  don't have access to the revenues, so we want to

         25  make sure that in the budget we dedicate that
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          2  percentage of the dollars to make it happen.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: As you know, with

          4  all due respect, I think that is certainly outside

          5  of my jurisdiction as to what monies get into my

          6  budget and so forth. It is a matter for the

          7  Administration and the Council to talk about on a

          8  global scale since the money doesn't ordinarily go

          9  into our budget. It goes into the general fund. It

         10  is a matter for a higher priority and policy making.

         11  With respect to the objections on the stand, I still

         12  don't believe that even if we had the money that it

         13  would work as well as the Flushing stand works in

         14  all areas of the City. I think it leaves a lot open

         15  to question and I think it goes to the debate as to

         16  whether the government should be using government

         17  funds to operate something when the private sector

         18  can and has done it on its own. I respectfully

         19  disagree on that. But the budget stuff is out of my

         20  hands. It is something that Mayor's budget office

         21  deals directly with the Council and the Speaker's

         22  office.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Finally, Mr.

         24  Chair, I think this issue, we, the class of 2001,

         25  came into the Council, have been subject of ongoing
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          2  discussion about the issue of service not being

          3  available in our community and there were several

          4  proposals that were laid out. One by the Federation

          5  of Drivers, I think, and many other proposals were

          6  laid out to address this need, this demand. Would

          7  you be willing to take up these discussions again in

          8  terms of -- if stands don't' work, if the stands

          9  don't work, would you be willing to look at what we

         10  already have in our communities and addressing the

         11  issues of the demands that are out there that are

         12  not being met with the various proposals that are --

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Our eyes and our

         14  ears are always wide open to solutions that could

         15  enhance service that already exist in the

         16  communities. Absolutely, we would be willing to have

         17  that discussion.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair. Thank you, Commissioner.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         21  Member Martinez. But once again, just to keep the

         22  integrity of this hearing in tact, the eyes and the

         23  ears actually are closed because the TLC has no idea

         24  how many illegal street hails exist out there.

         25  Before we keep saying that, oh we want to work
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          2  together and that there is no problem here or that

          3  the current framework works well, it is important to

          4  note that the TLC just doesn't have any idea how

          5  many legal street hails that exist.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I don't think

          7  that's a very fair assessment.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But that was the

          9  first question I asked and there is still no answer.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: When we see

         11  illegal activity, we issue summons for it. To have a

         12  crystal ball and a magic wand and to have a

         13  satellite photo and to try to guess how many cars

         14  are picking up illegally, it is just simply

         15  ridiculous --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Commissioner --

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: -- Comment to

         18  make.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let me give you a

         20  simple way to do it.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: How?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Just send an

         23  inspector to observe various street corners or

         24  subway stations --

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: -- Unannounced and

          3  just count. Just pick a random week day and count

          4  how many illegal street hails are occurring. And you

          5  get a sense immediately how many illegal street

          6  hails are actually occurring. It is not rocket

          7  science. It is pretty simple actually. You do not

          8  have to check every single subway station in the

          9  entire City. Just pick one or two random stations.

         10  Go there on a random day. It doesn't take a whole

         11  lot of personnel to do this. It is not rocket

         12  science. The problem is that the Administration and

         13  the TLC keeps saying that the current framework

         14  works fine. It is not working fine because there are

         15  thousands and thousands of illegal street hails

         16  occurring on a daily basis.

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Are you then

         18  suggesting, Mr. Chairman, we legalize street hails?

         19  Because it sounds to me that's what you are saying.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: What we are

         21  suggesting is that the TLC stop ignoring the issue.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I don't believe we

         23  are.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And that understand

         25   -- of course, you are ignoring because you have no
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          2  idea --

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We are enforcing

          4  the law.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: -- How many illegal

          6  street hails there are. And there are thousands of

          7  them taking place every single day. This is a

          8  service that New Yorkers want to have and they are

          9  getting. But unfortunately, they are getting it

         10  illegally. Illegally, not because it is

         11  fundamentally wrong. Illegally, artificially because

         12  the City has turned a blind eye to the needs of

         13  these New Yorkers outside the Manhattan Central

         14  Business District. No disrespect to you personally,

         15  Commissioner. I know that you have been working very

         16  hard on it. But this is an issue that the

         17  Administration needs to pay attention if we are

         18  truly to be a five borough City. Council Member

         19  Ignizio.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Thank you

         21  very much. And how are you Commissioner?

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Good morning.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: As some of

         24  you do know, I come from as deep far South as you

         25  can get. You can't find a yellow cab in my district.
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          2  You have a better chance of seeing God than seeing a

          3  yellow cab. So the livery service is very important

          4  to us. My take on this and I don't know if it has

          5  been put on the table, I don't know if it has been

          6  discussed. But I agree with the market driven

          7  approach with a deregulatory approach, if you will.

          8  Has the TLC thought of perhaps creating "taxi

          9  stands" in areas such as say in my district for the

         10  Staten Island mall, that yellow cabs and perhaps

         11  livery cabs can queue up there. They are already in

         12  our communities. They are already here and there is

         13  a market. If the yellow cab decides that they

         14  believe that there is a market where they can

         15  sustain coming to our districts, then they are

         16  welcome too.

         17                 Should the community cabs who are

         18  already service our communities want to be a part of

         19  that as well on a limited basis? I don't say, oh

         20  there are cars, but on a limited basis. Has the TLC

         21  ever looked at perhaps an enhanced license for those

         22  within that community cars or livery cars? And

         23  understand, this is a thought just here sitting here

         24  in this discussion, proposal that I'm thinking of

         25  the thing. I don't know if the TLC ever thought of
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          2  something as such. Maybe it will work, but tell me

          3  how it won't work.

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, we have

          5  thought about matters such as that and the Council

          6  would have to change the law in order for us to be

          7  able to do that. A couple of things that we

          8  encourage and have tried is on Ramp F of the Staten

          9  Island ferry where a lot of car services go to pick

         10  up passengers. We tried a public relations campaign

         11  at one point where we were looking at signage to

         12  have the names of the license basis. There is

         13  nothing prohibiting us working with DOT and the

         14  Police Department to set up areas where you could

         15  have livery vehicles come in and make prearranged

         16  pick ups.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Right, that's

         18  what I mean.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That may make

         20  sense at the mall. But the way the system works now,

         21  the best that we can do is to appraise the public of

         22  what the license basis and there is some very good

         23  ones on Staten Island and since Staten Island is a

         24  little bit more suburban or rural than other parts

         25  of the City, where you don't have a lot of highly
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          2  congested areas, you have a lot of open space,

          3  that's why the livery industry has flourished

          4  because of its geographic separation from the City.

          5  It is not logical for yellow cabs to be going back

          6  and forth unless they are taken there.

          7                 I guess, the answer to your question

          8  is right now, unless we change the law to work

          9  around the system, to make it easier for everyone,

         10  is to possibly create a scenario like that. Putting

         11  stands up, but making it clear at the stands that

         12  they are for prearranged service and making sure

         13  that all Staten Islanders are aware of the license

         14  basis, that it is dangerous to get into an

         15  unlicensed car and to encourage them to use the

         16  license basis and call them on their cell phones.

         17  And they are usually there within five to ten

         18  minutes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: It usually

         20  takes longer than that. But I appreciate and I mean

         21  it does occur on Staten Island. What I'm putting on

         22  the table, Mr. Chairman, is just a thought if you

         23  will, a discussion, if we will, to allow for an

         24  areas such as the malls in Queens or these high

         25  traffic locations where people routinely go to and
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          2  fro to have, you are creating a competitive market.

          3  If the yellow cabs decide that they think they can

          4  do a business in Queens or the Bronx or Brooklyn,

          5  they are welcome too. So to, we offer that to our

          6  community car service and I think more times than

          7  not, we are going to see them there.

          8                 Perhaps you have a situation whereby

          9  it is somewhat of an enhanced license so that you

         10  can pay for a regulator to be at that taxi cab or

         11  someone hired by perhaps the TLC, perhaps the

         12  companies together, perhaps something like, that

         13  assure that we do away with the illegal cabs and

         14  only those that are regulated by the City are able

         15  to do so. So I put it on the table for discussion. I

         16  don't know if it is the solution, but this is why we

         17  have these round tables to throw out ideas and see

         18  where we go from there. Thank you very much, Mr.

         19  Chairman. Thank you, Commissioner.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Thank you,

         21  Councilman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Absolutely, Council

         23  Member Ignizio. In fact, it is necessary to throw

         24  out these ideas. In the absence of ideas being

         25  thrown out by the Commission or by the
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          2  Administration, we've put forth this bill. We're

          3  happy to entertain other ways to give New Yorkers

          4  the service that they want and they are getting

          5  today except illegally. Let me turn the floor over

          6  to Council Member Mealy.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Good morning,

          8  Commissioner.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Good morning.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: I'm sitting

         11  here listening and it feels like a discrimination

         12  against the outer boroughs. Here it is, if you build

         13  taxi stands everywhere and one thing could you, what

         14  happened after at the Harlem with the community

         15  board. Did you follow up on that with the TLC and

         16  the livery taxicabs in the area?

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It was killed by

         18  the community board.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: And you just

         20  left it at that. Maybe at that area that you all

         21  wanted, it was not conducive to the community board.

         22  Did you try any other areas?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Actually, it was a

         24  little bit different than this bill. This was just a

         25  stand where people could go, where yellow cabs could
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          2  go to pick up on their own because we were finding

          3  that there more yellow cabs going up into Harlem,

          4  which was good news with the revitalization and the

          5  renaissance that took place. It is invariably a turf

          6  issue. I live in Brooklyn. I'm from the boroughs. I

          7  prefer having a car service with all due respect to

          8  the yellow cabs, pick me up on my block and take me

          9  where I need to go.

         10                 I would rather do that and get a car

         11  service within five, ten minutes, which I usually

         12  do, programming them into my cell phone. My wife and

         13  everybody has the numbers on the wall. That to me is

         14  more convenient than to go to the stand that is

         15  around the corner from me. There is a yellow cab

         16  stand on 86th Street in Brooklyn. I don't want to

         17  sit there and wait in line to get a yellow cab. I

         18  don't think it is an issue of discrimination. I

         19  think that's really not it at all. This has to be do

         20   --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: With you being

         22  the Commissioner and people take something out of

         23  "Commissioner," and you say it is an ocean, then

         24  why would the taxi drivers want to go to where it is

         25  only a pond?  In Brooklyn, in my area, that's a sad
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          2  state because everyone should get service no matter

          3  where the far parts of Staten Island to the smaller

          4  parts of Brooklyn. If these taxi stands were there,

          5  you never know. It is almost like build and they

          6  will come. I know certain places in my district, we

          7  do have our taxi stands legally ones just as well

          8  and illegal. But we should have that option to have

          9  yellow cabs in our area. It should be since City

         10  money is there just as well, why not let the outer

         11  boroughs get what they want just as well. I feel a

         12  test run of taxi stands, at least eight or six in

         13  the outer boroughs, let these taxi stands, at least

         14  give them an opportunity to produce.

         15                 Here it is, I thought about one thing

         16  our Chairman had said, we have to give an option to

         17  people, the same way we had to pass legislation that

         18  everyone, no matter where they want to go, a yellow

         19  cab has to stop and pick them up. If we have to put

         20  legislation in that these yellow cabs have to come

         21  to the outer borough, maybe we as legislators should

         22  do that. If we have to make a mandate on that and

         23  that should be the norm with anyone hailing a cab no

         24  matter where are you going, you should be able to be

         25  taken there. But we have to mandate it. That's sad
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          2  in this New York City. But we had to do. If we had

          3  to do this, because every borough deserves a taxi

          4  stand. Everyone tax dollars are paying for it. I

          5  just hope --

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Councilwoman, just

          7  so you understand, I as well as all New Yorkers

          8  would love if there were yellow cabs everyone. My

          9  testimony here, my job is to be practical and to

         10  have a dose of reality on some ideas and

         11  unfortunately, it is not being well received. But

         12  I'm not going to do my job by telling what you all

         13  what to hear. I believe very firmly that it is not

         14  going to work the same way as the Flushing stand.

         15  I'm trying to just share my advice and my opinions

         16  with you under the current system. If you are

         17  talking about, Council Member, changing the law to

         18  have mandates, that's a whole different issue.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Yes.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: My testimony is

         21  predicated upon the existing legal framework in

         22  which we are working. For the record, while I love

         23  the taxicab industry and they provide a very

         24  economical service overall compared to other cities,

         25  the reality is that locally for my family, I prefer
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          2  having a cheaper car service that's quicker to get

          3  to my door and is available. To say that and this is

          4  where I think my testimony is being maybe

          5  misconstrued, to say that the system is not working,

          6  that New Yorkers don't have some type of ground

          7  transportation is just wrong. I think what we are

          8  talking about is people would like other options

          9  which is a totally different debate. And that's

         10  something I support looking into and exploring, but

         11  we can't do it under the current legal framework.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay. But what

         13  I heard from you just last statement, what I heard

         14  from you was the taxi drivers are saying is, if ADA

         15  over here, I'm not going over there because I would

         16  get no fares and that's wrong. Period.

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: But it is their

         18  priority is to feed their families and to provide

         19  for them. But the bottom line is that the legal

         20  system the way it is set up, Council Member --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: But that's what

         22  the melting pot of New York is about everyone

         23  suppose to be served. Period.

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: If you tell that

         25  to a taxi driver that is looking to bring home some
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          2  extra bucks to their family, they will say if it is

          3  legally possible for me to go where the business is,

          4  they are going to go there. I don't blame them for

          5  it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: How do you

          7  think businesses feel when the City come and tear

          8  and up their street and their business lose money?

          9  Some small businesses close down. That's just part

         10  of life. If the taxi drivers are here, they should

         11  do their job as taxi drivers, even thought they are

         12  not making that much money, they have to do it.

         13  Because it is a service, there is a need and they

         14  are here to fulfill those needs. That's their job.

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: You can't even

         17  compare. Because mom and pop businesses have closed

         18  down that has been in business for 30 or more years

         19  just because the City came. Is that fair? No. It is

         20  the same scenario.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: The reason why

         22  they are not in the boroughs is because they are

         23  doing their job under the law the way it exists now.

         24  When they are in Manhattan, they are required to

         25  transport anyone, anywhere they want to go.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Only because we

          3  mandate it.

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, yes, but

          5  that was done 25 years ago and significant

          6  investments of over $5 billion over all have been

          7  made by people relying on that system. If you were

          8  going to start from scratch and say we don't have

          9  any regulation, let's build the system, we could

         10  have a different debate. But the realty is legally

         11  and morally, when you set something up 25 years ago

         12  and then you try to dismantle it after investors

         13  have relied on and people have put their hard

         14  working money into buying a medallion, it leaves

         15  something to be desired. Again, I'm testifying based

         16  upon, Council Member with all due respect to you,

         17  the current law the way it exists. If the Council is

         18  looking to make some changes and tweaks to the law

         19  that is fair and just, of course, we will work and

         20  live with that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay. Thank

         22  you, Chairperson.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But once again, and

         24  again I don't like to have all this spin during

         25  these kinds of hearings. You are saying that we are
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          2  not going to work together on this because there is

          3  no problem. Once again, I don't want there be any

          4  misconstruing of that position. The Administration's

          5  position is clear here based on this testimony.

          6  There is no problem. The current framework exists

          7  and is working well. The simple fact that the

          8  Administration in this City through the TLC has no

          9  idea to what extent illegal street hails are

         10  occurring on a daily basis. That itself is the

         11  problem. That is where the eye is being turned blind

         12  to the problem.

         13                 That is fundamentally the reason why

         14  nothing is being done to address the needs of so

         15  many of these New Yorkers outside the Central

         16  Business District who need this kind of on demand

         17  street hail service and are only able to get so

         18  through illegal means. Thank you very much. We will

         19  be happy to continue this kind of discussion. But I

         20  think this is -- well, I'll leave it at that. Thank

         21  you very much.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: You're welcome. It

         23  is good seeing you all. Have a good day.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Next we are going to

         25  hear from a panel of representatives of the yellow
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          2  cab industry followed by a panel of industry

          3  representatives from the livery car industry and

          4  then followed by a panel of environmental experts.

          5  The next panel will be Joseph Giannetto, David

          6  Pollack and Alan Kaufman. The following panel will

          7  consist of Julio Alvarez, J. Campo. Why don't you

          8  guys get settled. Let's just take two minutes for

          9  everybody to get settled.

         10                 Good morning. We are resuming the

         11  City Council's committee on Transportation hearing

         12  on Intro 401 and Intro 473, both of which to seek to

         13  enhance taxi cab service in New York City. Now

         14  joined by a panel of industry representatives from

         15  the yellow cab industry and gentlemen, please

         16  identify yourself and please proceed.

         17                 MR. GIANNETTO: My name is Joseph

         18  Giannetto with the Metropolitan Taxicab Board of

         19  Trade.

         20                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Arthur Goldstein

         21  representing the Taxicab Service Association, Alan

         22  Kaufman had to leave.

         23                 MR. POLLACK: David Pollack, Director,

         24  Committee for Taxi Safety.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You may begin.
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          2                 MR. GIANNETTO: Good morning, Chairman

          3  Liu and members of the Transportation Committee. I'm

          4  the Joseph Giannetto from Metropolitan Taxicab Board

          5  of Trade, a 55- year- old trade association

          6  dedicated to providing tax service and ensuring the

          7  safety of our drivers, passengers and the riding

          8  public as well as protecting the yellow medallion

          9  taxicab's exclusive right to pick up street hails.

         10  We represent over 3,000 yellow medallion taxicabs

         11  that are leased to over 12,000 drivers at 24 fleet

         12  garages throughout the City.

         13                 MTBOT is always striving to find most

         14  efficient ways to enhance taxi service to the riding

         15  public while maintaining and improving the taxi

         16  experience for drivers and owners. That is why in

         17  June 2003, MTBOT, along with Chairman Liu, launched

         18  the first dispatcher operated yellow taxi stand in

         19  any borough outside of Manhattan or the airports. In

         20  fact, we reactivated an existing yellow taxi stand

         21  that had been overrun by livery vehicles illegally

         22  cruising and picking up street hails as well as

         23  other vehicles idling, parking or otherwise not

         24  serving any public benefit whatsoever.

         25                 Nearly four years later, our
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          2  experimental stand, which continues to operate on

          3  the busy corner of Roosevelt Avenue and Main Street

          4  in Flushing, Queens, has been a remarkable success

          5  in providing safe, affordable, reliable yellow taxi

          6  service to neighborhoods outside of Manhattan. In

          7  short, we proved to our drivers and our detractors

          8  that there was demand for yellow taxi service

          9  outside of Manhattan and the airports.

         10                 I am proud to report that at the end

         11  of last month, the Flushing taxi stand dispatched

         12  90,974 passengers. By the stand's fourth anniversary

         13  this June, we will have moved more than 100,000

         14  passengers. That is 100,000 passengers that

         15  previously received no yellow taxi service on Main

         16  Street; 100,000 passengers that did not endanger

         17  their own safety by illegally hailing a livery car.

         18  Among these fares, 95.5 percent of passengers took

         19  taxis to other parts of Queens; therefore,

         20  fulfilling the original purposes of the stand which

         21  was to extend the commute home and increase yellow

         22  service in outer borough neighborhoods.

         23                 The Flushing taxi stands phenomenal

         24  success make this program worthy of emulation

         25  throughout the boroughs and we therefore applaud
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          2  Chairman Liu for taking this concept Citywide and we

          3  enthusiastically support Intro 401. Now MTBOT fully

          4  funds the taxi stand in Flushing, which is staffed

          5  from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., Monday through Friday

          6  and 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturdays. We employ

          7  three uniform dispatchers who work morning and

          8  afternoon shifts and record information about

          9  passenger destination and volume that's critical in

         10  assessing the stands success and identifying areas

         11  that need improvement.

         12                 We also realize that, as successful

         13  as the stand was, it could still be improved. And in

         14  November of 2005, with the support of Chairman Liu,

         15  we engaged the Port Authority of New York and New

         16  Jersey in an innovative incentive program. The Chair

         17  testified to it, but with the authorization of the

         18  Port Authority, we began to issue what we call fast

         19  track airport vouchers to drivers who service

         20  passengers at the stand.

         21                 The fast track vouchers are

         22  redeemable at JFK and LaGuardia airports and entitle

         23  the driver to skip the long lines at the airport

         24  taxi holding lots. It mirrors an existing incentive

         25  for taxi drivers who make short trips from the
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          2  airports and it has worked. Within three months, the

          3  fast track voucher program increased activity at the

          4  stand by 173 percent, with the average monthly

          5  passenger volume rising from 954 to 2,605. Today,

          6  the current monthly average of trips dispatched from

          7  our taxi stand in Flushing, Queens, is about 3,663.

          8                 Now to be sure, there are a number of

          9  impediments to the efficient operation of our taxi

         10  stand that must be actively managed in order for the

         11  stand to continue its success. They range from sight

         12  specific logistical problems to a lack of adequate

         13  enforcement against illegal livery street hails to

         14  driver satisfaction. The City must set the stage for

         15  success for yellow taxi stands to work in the

         16  boroughs outside of Manhattan. It is a goal well

         17  worth pursing as it provides residents out of

         18  Manhattan with access to one of the City's safest

         19  and most convenient modes of transportation. To make

         20  it really work, these dispatcher run taxi stands

         21  must have strong and steady enforcement against

         22  illegal livery street hails and must be easily

         23  accessible by taxi drivers and not impeded by

         24  traffic restrictions, bus stops, or commercial

         25  loading or unloading activity.

                                                            97

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 We are also pleased to support Intro

          3  473, which gives priority queue status to

          4  alternative fuel vehicles at those proposed stands.

          5  This bill reinforces the sound policy of providing

          6  vehicle choice to taxi owners by providing good

          7  incentives. We believe this incentive will be an

          8  asset to the overall taxi policy. And before I

          9  conclude, I would just like to recognize the

         10  Executive Director of Metropolitan Taxicab Board of

         11  Trade, Ms. Jeanne Barrett (phonetic), she is sitting

         12  in the back in the blue blazer. She single-handedly

         13  worked this stand since its implementation and made

         14  it the success that it is today. Thank you, Jeanne.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         16                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Good morning. Arthur

         17  Goldstein representing the Taxicab Service

         18  Association. It is a group made of up major credit

         19  unions in the industry. The TSA supports both bills.

         20  On Intro 473, we just believe you should consider a

         21  sunset provision so that the incentive doesn't

         22  necessarily go on for ten, 20, 30 years or just

         23  stays on the books. It should be a real review when

         24  the report is due and then the Council, as a body,

         25  can make a decision whether you want the incentive
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          2  to continue two years, five, years et cetera.

          3                 On the cab stands, which we fully

          4  support and are glad to see the bill, we believe

          5  that it finds a balance for just about everything,

          6  every Council Member has said so far. You need to

          7  draw some more cabs to places outside the business

          8  district. It is simple. You have to provide the

          9  stands and incentives for the cabs to go there. If

         10  you build it, they will come. Will they come in

         11  thousands? No, I don't think that's your intent. I

         12  think you are trying to find a balance. And with

         13  this bill, I think you have found the balance.

         14                 Also, once you have stands

         15  established, with the right protocols, TLC can

         16  attack the enforcement problem right then and there.

         17  If an illegal cab, non- insured shows up a stand and

         18  because they say it is going to be a magnet for it,

         19  well, then have the appropriate personnel there to

         20  early on send the message that it will not be

         21  tolerated. That way the stands will become

         22  effective. If you couple it with enforcement, it

         23  will be very important.

         24                 In terms of some of the negatives

         25  that TLC brought to the stage, it is a matter of
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          2  examining each and every selection spot in the outer

          3  boroughs. The rules probably have to be flexible

          4  enough to take care of safety issues and maybe that

          5  phrase ought to be in there. Maybe you don't pull

          6  them out of the line. Maybe they just recognize the

          7  sixth car down is a hybrid. You go there because

          8  they are a hybrid. In the Bronx, you may have to be

          9  more creative, if the Chairman has a point about the

         10  difficulty of drawing cabs to the Bronx because it

         11  is so far to airports. Maybe you give them two

         12  shorty tickets. I'm not sure what the answer is, but

         13  I think a dialogue ought to ensue.

         14                 In short, we applaud MTBOT for being

         15  in the private sector coming forth and starting this

         16  and we hope that the bills passes in this form or

         17  something close to it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The camaraderie is

         19  just magnificent. Dave.

         20                 MR. POLLACK: Good afternoon, almost.

         21  The Committee supports, the Committee for Taxi

         22  Safety supports Intro 410, or 401, I'm sorry.

         23  Riverdale, Flushing, Sheepshead Bay, stands do make

         24  sense in the outer boroughs for yellow taxi cabs.

         25  The only thing, if I had an opportunity to add
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          2  something to the stands, I would offer an additional

          3  incentive similar to what's offered in Flushing.

          4  Instead of a one hour shorty ticket, maybe in

          5  Riverdale or in Brooklyn, they should have a four

          6  hour shorty ticket or a six hour shorty ticket so

          7  the guy knows he doesn't have to rush to the airport

          8  right after picking up one fare.

          9                 Council Member Martinez was right.

         10  Once he picks up a shorty fare, then there is

         11  another fare in the outer borough and another.

         12  Chairman Daus mentioned that eight percent of all

         13  fares are out of boroughs including airports. If

         14  five percent of all fares are in the outer boroughs

         15  and each taxi picks up 60 fares in the 24 hour

         16  period, there are thousands and thousands of fares

         17  that are in the outer boroughs. The color isn't

         18  discriminatory. The color is green. That's the color

         19  that it is all about.

         20                 If there is a place where drivers can

         21  now instead of rushing back from Riverdale down the

         22  West Side Highway or rushing on the Belt Parkway

         23  from Brooklyn to avoid all of Brooklyn and get into

         24  lower Manhattan, if there is a place now where a

         25  taxi driver can possibly get a fare with incentives
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          2  especially. It's like you know what, let me go to

          3  that stand. Those are the reasons why we believe it

          4  will work. It just seems like a no brainer to us.

          5                 I like that $140 million you

          6  mentioned, windfall above the expected amount of

          7  money. Switching to 473, which we really don't

          8  support for a couple of reasons. Incentive is a big

          9  issue. There are 300 some odd hybrid vehicles at

         10  this time. If we are talking about Penn Station or

         11  Grand Central at 5:00, 6:00, 7:00 in the morning,

         12  those taxi stands literally have scores of cars

         13  waiting for those buses and trains to come in.

         14                 I'm not going to wait on that stand

         15  if I know a hybrid has first shot at it. Why should

         16  I be there? Okay, let me cruise the streets. Let me

         17  not wait there. There may be some type of

         18  disincentive for non- fuel efficient vehicles to use

         19  those stands if they are given certain priorities.

         20  However, you mentioned what about the outer

         21  boroughs. I don't think I have a problem with that

         22  in the outer boroughs. It is just in Manhattan.

         23                 The airports, approximately 80

         24  percent of people landing at the airport, take

         25  yellow cabs to their destinations and approximately

                                                            102

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  half that number take yellow cabs to the airports.

          3  The airports and the Port Authority need our help.

          4  They are getting taxi service. Maybe we should

          5  consider giving them a little more help and

          6  extending those airport shorty tickets to the new

          7  taxi stands and possibly if 473 passes that same

          8  type of situation. I don't think the fuel efficient

          9  vehicle is needed since they are going to be the

         10  first on line. But certainly the other taxis do

         11  deserve it if you want service.

         12                 Just as note that as the Prius which

         13  I don't really fit into and the Civics are not

         14  faring well as yellow taxicabs. They are a little

         15  too low to the ground and with heavy loads, they are

         16  bottoming out and they are already seeing some

         17  problems. I think as time goes on and even though

         18  the TLC is dedicated to switching from passenger

         19  comfort to miles per gallon, I think with two

         20  minivans soon to be approved, the Kia Sedona and the

         21  Nissan Minivan, which both by the way gets seven

         22  miles per gallon more than the Crown Victoria, there

         23  will be more opportunities for more fuel efficient

         24  taxis to be purchased by owners. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. I
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          2  appreciate your testimony. Once again, I will note

          3  that our next panel will consist of representatives

          4  from the livery, the for- hire vehicle industry.

          5  Just a few questions for all of you. Perhaps, Mr.

          6  Giannetto, you may be closer to these answers, but

          7  any of you guys have answers that would be much

          8  appreciated also. Do illegal street hails happen in

          9  New York City?

         10                 MR. GIANNETTO: Illegal street hails

         11  do happen in New York City.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is it a negligible

         13  amount, isolated incidents or what is the phenomenal

         14  of illegal street hails?

         15                 MR. GIANNETTO: Depending on the

         16  neighborhood, it could be significant.

         17                 MR. POLLACK: Manhattan, were we say

         18  80 percent of taxi fares are generated and

         19  destinations are in Manhattan. One of the biggest

         20  problems I hear from drivers every day are the

         21  illegal street hails by non- yellow taxicabs.

         22  Passengers being stolen, their fares being stolen by

         23  non- yellow taxicabs.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Does it take a great

         25  deal of effort for TLC to at least quantify what the
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          2  problem is?

          3                 MR. GIANNETTO: Well, you can go out

          4  and do your vehicle surveys and you can go out and

          5  do your counts as you suggested, Chairman, and it is

          6  going to be depended on the resources that they have

          7  and I don't want to stand here and defend the TLC

          8  necessarily, but they could get an idea of what the

          9  activity level is. But again, to quantify it to an

         10  exact measure would be depended on the resources

         11  that they have to accurately check.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right. You are

         13  not giving me any answers there that are useful. I'm

         14  serious. I'd like to get some useful --

         15                 MR. GIANNETTO: I think that everyone

         16  here knows that illegal street hails happen. You

         17  could look at the Flushing taxi stand --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, why don't you

         19  just say that?

         20                 MR. GIANNETTO: I thought I said it.

         21  So you could come to the taxi stand in Flushing and

         22  you could see how the yellow taxis compete with

         23  liveries that pick up illegal street hails. We could

         24  walk outside and we could see it. It does happen and

         25  it is significant.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, great.

          3                 MR. POLLACK: I'm sure every major

          4  avenue in the outer boroughs and every avenue and

          5  street in New York City, just stand there and

          6  observe and you will see illegal street hails sooner

          7  or later.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Again, as I noted

          9  before, even though it is an illegal street hail, I

         10  don't think there is fundamentally anything wrong

         11  with a New Yorker wanting to be able to get into a

         12  car service immediately off the street. It is up to

         13  the City to provide that legal framework that allows

         14  them to do so with the safeguards properly in place.

         15  Mr. Giannetto, you are familiar with the taxicab

         16  stand in Flushing. Your testimony addressed that.

         17  What is the annual cost of such a stand?

         18                 MR. GIANNETTO: It costs MTBOT

         19  approximately $70 to $75,000 a year to operate that

         20  stand.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So that gives us the

         22  cost estimate. Say it costs, let's just round the

         23  number up to a $100,000. That would be a $100,000 a

         24  year, that would be over three years which is what

         25  the bill says, the pilot period. That would be

                                                            106

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  $300,000 for each stand and if we were to have ten

          3  such stands around the City, that gives us a

          4  ballpark figure of $3 million for the cost of this

          5  bill; assuming that we were going to set up ten

          6  stands all across the City. If there are in fact

          7  fewer stands, it would be less. But nonetheless, it

          8  would still be less than the amount of windfall

          9  profit that the City took in over these last three

         10  years of selling 900 new medallions.

         11                 The TLC also talked about, they seem

         12  to imply that the taxi stand only works if there are

         13  incentives. When we set up the taxi stand in

         14  Flushing, it was necessary to have incentives to get

         15  the taxi drivers out there. Because even among

         16  yellow cab drivers, there may be some skepticism as

         17  to whether money could be made out there. In your

         18  opinion, are ongoing incentives necessary to keep

         19  the cab stand operating or is there a cadre of

         20  yellow cab drivers (it may not be a huge number),

         21  but a cadre of yellow cab drivers that consistently

         22  service that cab stand in Flushing.

         23                 MR. GIANNETTO: It's a good point,

         24  Chairperson. Even before the fast track voucher

         25  incentive was implemented, the stand was doing

                                                            107

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  approximately a 1,000 rides a month. Although, it

          3  declined just prior to the incentive program, we

          4  were still doing rides. It is not necessary

          5  incentives. You will have a pool of steady drivers

          6  that will service the stand as is the case and was

          7  the case. You see that happening in other stands

          8  throughout the City such as Continental Avenue at

          9  Queens Boulevard. There is no incentive program

         10  there, yet at any rush hour you could find taxi cabs

         11  waiting for passengers to get out of the subway

         12  station so they could finish their commute home. And

         13  you see it in other locations throughout the City.

         14  Certainly the incentives help, but it is not

         15  necessarily absolute necessity.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. We have

         17  questions from Council Member Reyna.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chairman. I just wanted to go back four years

         20  gentlemen. The taxi stand idea was not something

         21  that or rather did you go on record supporting or

         22  objecting to the taxi stand idea four years ago.

         23                 MR. GIANNETTO: Metropolitan Taxicab

         24  Board of Trade in conjunction with the Chairperson

         25  implemented it. So we were in full support of the
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          2  taxi stand.

          3                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: The Taxicab Service

          4  Association supported their efforts, wanted to see

          5  the results and I think a number of us going to back

          6  Council Member Mealy's phrase, build it and they

          7  will come.

          8                 MR. POLLACK: The goal of the stand

          9  was to prove that we could bring yellow taxi service

         10  to the outer boroughs and I think the stand has

         11  shown that.

         12                 MR. GIANNETTO: I don't recall every

         13  being against yellow taxi stands.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just wanted

         15  to have a recollection as to four years ago how we

         16  got to this point of success with the Flushing

         17  Avenue taxi stand. There is a lot of skepticism as

         18  far as the TLC is concerned and the notion that a

         19  taxi stand is not necessary in the outer boroughs is

         20  just one that is difficult to deal with on an

         21  interactive dialogue. Regardless of the TLC being

         22  the oversight agency for the industry, you went

         23  ahead and built a collaboration with our Chair of

         24  this Committee. As far as the cost is concerned to

         25  fully operating the Flushing taxi stand is how much
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          2  a year?

          3                 MR. GIANNETTO: For the last 12

          4  months, MTBOT has expended over $70,000 to operate

          5  that stand and that includes personnel cost for the

          6  dispatchers as well as equipment costs and as well

          7  as the administrative costs to analyze the data and

          8  prepare reports.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: $70,000?

         10                 MR. GIANNETTO: The $70,000.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: As far as the

         12  stand itself, it was already a pre- existing stand.

         13                 MR. GIANNETTO: The stand that existed

         14  consisted simply of a sign on a sign post that said,

         15  no standing except yellow taxis. Other than that,

         16  all that was there were livery vehicles and other

         17  vehicles that were just idling there and just taking

         18  up space.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But the sign

         20  did exist?

         21                 MR. GIANNETTO: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And there was

         23  always a hub for taxicabs?

         24                 MR. GIANNETTO: The sign allowed for

         25  taxicabs to park there.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Correct. What

          3  was the reason why it wasn't functioning until four

          4  years ago? How long had that sign been there?

          5                 MR. GIANNETTO: I'm sure that sign had

          6  been there for a number of years. But the key to the

          7  success of the taxi stand was to have a dispatcher

          8  there that could control and administer and police

          9  the stand. Prior to that, you had taxi drivers

         10  competing with illegal livery vehicles, picking up

         11  illegal street hails. That competition just left ran

         12  rampant and the taxi drivers decided it wasn't worth

         13  their effort. That's probably why if I could

         14  speculate it, why they band in that area. But once

         15  you had a dispatcher there that could provide some

         16  level of discipline and order to that stand, taxi

         17  drivers returned.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And the taxi

         19  stand was under the oversight of TLC?

         20                 MR. GIANNETTO: No, it was an unmanned

         21  taxi stand that was just a sign.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But when the

         23  sign was created, was it created by DOT or it was

         24  created by TLC or who is the oversight agency over

         25  the stand itself when it was created?

                                                            111

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 MR. GIANNETTO: There are

          3  approximately 250 taxi stands or FHV relief stands

          4  throughout the City.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Two hundred

          6  fifty?

          7                 MR. GIANNETTO: Last time I checked.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Now only one

          9  works in Flushing?

         10                 MR. GIANNETTO: No, no. Those signs

         11  were put up, I guess, by the DOT who has ultimate

         12  jurisdiction. But I would speculate in consultation

         13  with the TLC and it depends on the needs of the

         14  industry and how they are voiced and where they

         15  would like these stands. Again --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Out of 250, how

         17  many operate the way the Flushing Avenue stand

         18  works?

         19                 MR. GIANNETTO: How many taxi stands

         20  throughout the City are maned by a dispatcher?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Um- hum.

         22                 MR. GIANNETTO: Dave, you could start

         23  rattling them off. Grand Central, Penn Station, of

         24  course, Flushing. You have the Port Authority at

         25  42nd and 8th.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Who operates

          3  the Grand Central?

          4                 MR. GIANNETTO: As the Chair

          5  testified, they are operated by private entities.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Private

          7  entities are invested in these taxi stands making

          8  sure that they operate. Correct?

          9                 MR. GIANNETTO: With the exception of

         10  the ones at the Port Authority which are run

         11  obviously by the Port Authority of New York and New

         12  Jersey. Otherwise, I think they are funded by the

         13  local business improvement district or otherwise

         14  through private funds.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: What would be

         16  the incentive for MTBOT to continue duplicating the

         17  work that they have already implemented successfully

         18  at the Flushing Avenue taxi stand?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let me just make two

         20  corrections as point of information. I think Council

         21  Member Reyna means Flushing not Flushing Avenue.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I apologize.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It is Flushing. I

         24  would also urge the industry representatives to

         25  perhaps use a term, attendant, as opposed to
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          2  dispatcher. Because no one actually dispatches any

          3  rides at these taxi stands. The yellow cab industry

          4  is not permitted to dispatch rides. Dispatching is

          5  reserved only for the for- hire vehicles. So the

          6  people who are staffing the taxi stand in Flushing

          7  or Grand Central or at the airports, they are not

          8  dispatchers per say, they are attendants.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you. Mr.

         10  Giannetto, can you continue with the answer? As far

         11  as what incentive would MTBOT have to continue to

         12  duplicate and continue the pilot program? Let's say

         13  in Council Member Koppell's district, he is

         14  explaining to me how you can't go around his area

         15  without, if I were to be driving a certain vehicle

         16  that would be mistaken as a livery car, ready to be

         17  hailed for ridership.

         18                 MR. GIANNETTO: We will certainly lend

         19  our advice and consultation to any entity that is

         20  willing to establish a stand throughout the City. We

         21  will just refer to the documentation, to the

         22  history, we will provide them with guidance. If you

         23  are asking us for a financial commitment, I don't

         24  think MTBOT is in a position to financially fund the

         25  operation of other stands, other than the one at
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          2  Flushing. It is a big cost to these trade

          3  association. We have a commitment in Flushing. We

          4  will maintain that commitment. But I don't think we

          5  could financially commit elsewhere. But we will

          6  certainly provide our experience and our expertise

          7  to help establish other stands.

          8                 MR. POLLACK: The attendants at Grand

          9  Central are provided by the 42nd Street bid, I

         10  believe. And Penn Station, taxi attendants are

         11  provided by the 34th Street Partnership. I know a

         12  good incentive for MTBOT. Let the City pay for it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm just having

         14  a hard time understanding why there are certain

         15  areas that have the sustainability for private

         16  entities to run taxi stands, but not others. Two

         17  hundred fifty stands throughout the City of New

         18  York, but there is only a few dozen that operates

         19  successfully. And they have existed for decades now

         20  but do not function.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Hold on. Let me just

         22  say that Council Member Reyna's concerns are very

         23  valid and legitimate. I'm not sure if these are the

         24  representatives that are best suited to answer those

         25  kinds of questions. In fact, the question is so good
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          2  which is why having this kind of pilot program where

          3  we set up, where we identify the locations such as

          4  locations near major transit hubs where these kind

          5  of taxi stands could work is the key point here.

          6  That why is that 250 signs have been posted and yet

          7  have had no taxis at those signs except in places

          8  where there is an active attendant attending to the

          9  stand itself.

         10                 MR. POLLACK: Many of those stands are

         11  for one or two taxicabs. Others are for FHV's as

         12  well where the black cars may be waiting for their

         13  passengers and occupying spaces for yellow cabs, et

         14  cetera. It is very rare to have an attendant helping

         15  out and we complement MTBOT on their project.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Have you

         17  reached out --

         18                 MR. GIANNETTO: I'm sorry. I just

         19  wanted to clarify. It is not stand signage. It is

         20  just signage related to either taxi areas or FHV

         21  relief stands and that type. But not stands in the

         22  nature of the MTBOT Flushing stand.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: As far as the

         24  capital investment as to where this attendant is

         25  suppose to be stationed at, is there a kiosk or is
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          2  there a capital cost to it? The Chairman had,

          3  Chairman Daus was referring to a capital cost in his

          4  testimony. Did MTBOT experience a cost that related

          5  to capital?

          6                 MR. GIANNETTO: There is no kiosk at

          7  the stand. Other than equipment, there is no other

          8  substantial cost to establish the stand. We would

          9  like to see a kiosk eventually to provide shelter

         10  for the dispatcher or the attendant, but at this

         11  time none exists.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Council Member

         15  Koppell.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Apologies,

         17  I'm going to have to go after I make this statement.

         18  I welcome the industry's support for this proposal,

         19  Mr. Chairman. Frankly, I'm delighted that they did

         20  what they did in Flushing. I have been waiting for

         21  them to do something like at 231st Street in

         22  Broadway without success. I think it probably does

         23  need if we need -- the interesting thing is whether

         24  we need this attendant or not. I've had my own

         25  skepticism about that. What we need is the
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          2  willingness of the cab drivers to come there. I

          3  understand they are not coming there because they

          4  feel they can make more money in Manhattan. And

          5  that's why I've on occasion raised alternative

          6  proposals such as allowing the for- hire vehicles to

          7  stand at some of these places. I think that may

          8  still be necessary.

          9                 If the yellow cabs are willing to

         10  come, I'm happy to have them. I'm also willing to

         11  expend City money to encourage them. If having these

         12  attendants which is the major cost will get them

         13  there, that's fine. If giving them some incentives

         14  of the airports will get them there, that's also

         15  fine. Let me just say that while I regret that

         16  Flushing is the only place and it is not only just

         17  in my district, it is other places. We have done in

         18  one place. It is great that we have done it in that

         19  place. But we have got to do it in more places. The

         20  time is long overdue. I welcome the industry's

         21  support for this. I hope we do it. I hope it works.

         22                 I know they made a big investment. I

         23  don't want to take that away from them if we don't

         24  have too. But we have to got provide, as you said,

         25  Mr. Chairman, so eloquently a legal service to the
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          2  people who demand it. And at least in the Bronx, not

          3  only in my district, but over all the Bronx people

          4  are using the service that supposedly not legal even

          5  though it is used.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          7  Council Member Koppell. Gentlemen, thank you very

          8  much for joining us today. Let me invite the next

          9  panel. Julio Alvarez and J. Campo both of the United

         10  Drivers Group; representatives of the for- hire

         11  vehicle livery industry. Following this panel, we

         12  will hear from Stephanie Mandell, Ari Kahn, and

         13  Steve Adler. Mr. Alvarez. Please identify yourself

         14  for the record and proceed. Bring it closer. Bring

         15  it much closer and press the button, please. The red

         16  light should be off.

         17                 MR. ALVAREZ: My name is Julio

         18  Alvarez. I am the President of United Drivers Group

         19  of America representing livery owners and drivers

         20  from Uptown Manhattan and the Bronx. To members of

         21  the Municipal Council, first and foremost, we want

         22  to thank you for giving us the opportunity to

         23  express our opinion regarding the establishment of

         24  taxicab stands. As you know, there are more than 500

         25  livery cab bases that offer a valuable service in
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          2  low- income neighborhoods throughout the City.

          3                 In areas like Washington Heights, the

          4  Bronx, our drivers need taxi stands or at least they

          5  should be able to use existing stands such as the

          6  ones on Dyckman Street, Broadway around Presbyterian

          7  Hospital. We need places where we could receive

          8  calls for service and where our customers could pick

          9  up. In a few places in the City, taxicabs rarely

         10  have to roam for customers. However, if for any

         11  reason, a livery cab uses any of the existing

         12  stands, the driver is fined. This is not only

         13  unfair, but it also represents unequal protection

         14  under the law. This is why we believe that at least

         15  some of the stands should be available for livery

         16  cabs.

         17                 Additionally, you should know that

         18  our bases are resting places for our drivers. We

         19  provide them with bathrooms and provide other

         20  supporting services to them. Yet, because we lack a

         21  taxi stand, we are unable to use these services

         22  unless we double park and risk a fine or unless we

         23  use a long time looking for parking. We are in favor

         24  of the stands with a livery accommodation that in

         25  places where we serve, livery cabs serve, we should
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          2  be allowed to use to pick up.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

          4  Mr. Campo. You are accompanying, Mr. Alvarez. Thank

          5  you very much. Thanks for your testimony today.

          6                 MR. CAMPO: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm sorry. Council

          8  Member Martinez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: You are

         10  asking that in addition to the establishing stands

         11  for yellow cab, that there should also be stands for

         12  liveries or the liveries be included to be part of

         13  the stand?

         14                 MR. ALVAREZ: In those areas where out

         15  of the City, we should be able to use because some

         16  of those stands already exist. There is a stand at

         17  Dyckman. You rarely see a yellow cab taxi around

         18  there. There is one at 181st. There is one at

         19  Presbyterian Hospital. There is one at Fordham Row

         20  and we should be able to use them.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Let me ask

         22  you another question. Do you agree with the

         23  statement the Commissioner made that, you will

         24  probably will agree but I just thought about that,

         25  what the Commissioner said that if we were do the
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          2  stands, the yellow cabs are not going to come

          3  anyway.

          4                 MR. ALVAREZ: If we are going to use

          5  whatever is happening now, there is a stand at

          6  Dyckman and you live in the neighborhood, maybe you

          7  could answer that yourself.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No, no, no.

          9  I know they don't come. I'm saying, if we put in the

         10  pilot program like they have in Flushing, if we put

         11  a plan like that, do you think the yellow cars are

         12  going to come and they are going to commute in the

         13  area. Or you think it is just not going to work and

         14  therefore that's why you think you are the best

         15  option.

         16                 MR. ALVAREZ: There are specific

         17  places where I believe it would work. There are some

         18  places would not work.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         22  Thank you, gentlemen. Mr. Adler, did you want to add

         23  your brief testimony now?

         24                 MR. ADLER: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Why don't you go
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          2  ahead and let me ask Stephanie Mandell and Ari Kahn

          3  to also to come to the table as well. Please

          4  proceed.

          5                 MR. ADLER: My name is Steve Adler. I

          6  only heard about this important meeting yesterday

          7  afternoon and was not able an additional statement

          8  above the 40,000 word study that I sent to your

          9  office yesterday afternoon. New York City is a great

         10  City. But there are nearly seven billion people in

         11  the world and there are many great cities in the

         12  world. If New York City doesn't take the initiative

         13  to do things better, faster and smarter than other

         14  cities in the world, before long it will become a

         15  second rate place. We don't want that. There are a

         16  lot of very capable people in this City, very sharp

         17  people, very intelligent people including some of

         18  those sitting here on the City Council.

         19                 The question of taxi service is an

         20  old one. The question of taxi medallions is an old

         21  one. The demand for taxi service in New York City is

         22  four or five times higher than what it was in the

         23  depression when the number of taxi medallions was

         24  fixed at roughly what it is today. Out in the Bronx,

         25  at Fordham in the Concourse, the largest non-
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          2  expressway intersection in the City, at least in the

          3  Bronx, you could stand all day and hardly see a

          4  single yellow cab. But I'm not here to talk about

          5  the shortcomings of the existing system.

          6                 I'm here to propose something new.

          7  Right outside of this building is Brooklyn Bridge.

          8  On the Brooklyn Bridge, you will find many cabs, but

          9  you won't find any buses. Buses are too heavy and

         10  together with other heavy vehicles, they are

         11  essentially banned from the Brooklyn Bridge. I would

         12  like to propose in consistent with the Chair's

         13  interest in taxis and in hybrid, low pollution

         14  vehicles that we have a law that says that any place

         15  in the City where buses are too heavy to operate,

         16  like the Brooklyn Bridge or like Park Avenue above

         17  Grand Central up to 96th Street, that anyone who has

         18  a low floor, zero pollution hybrid, whatever

         19  vehicle, can provide whatever service they want at

         20  whatever fare they want.

         21                 This would bring to New York City a

         22  host of new service providers with new types of

         23  vehicles that could set an example for the

         24  development in the rest of the City. I am now

         25  initiating the first global jitney system conference
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          2  and expo. My calculations suggest that opening up

          3  the market for service transportation, that is

          4  getting rid of the monopoly franchise bus laws and

          5  the taxi medallions laws, compensating those who

          6  would lose, would result in net benefits to the

          7  people of New York City of $15 billion a year.

          8  That's after taking care of the medallion owners and

          9  taking care of the unionized bus operators.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Adler, please

         11  wrap up.

         12                 MR. ADLER: $15 billion a year.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         14                 MR. ADLER: I hope that you have some

         15  questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Ms.

         17  Mandell. I understand. Yes, that's fine.

         18                 MS. MANDELL: Okay. Good afternoon. My

         19  name is Stephanie Mandell and I pleased to testify

         20  on behalf on INFORM in support of Intro 473 and 401.

         21  INFORM applauds Intro 473 as well as the City

         22  Council's many efforts to promote alternative fuel

         23  and hybrid taxi legislation in the past year.

         24                 INFORM is a national, nonprofit

         25  organization that has analyzed fuel alternatives
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          2  since the mid- 1980s. Our mission is to promote

          3  business practices that make environmental

          4  stewardship and economic progress mutually

          5  supportive. Intro 473 is exactly the kind of

          6  incentive based policy that we feel will pull the

          7  taxi industry forward rather than push them and

          8  encourage taxis to incorporate environmental

          9  stewardship into their business plans.

         10                 INFORM supports Intro 473 for five

         11  key reasons. I will try and abbreviate these.

         12  Cleaning air and protecting public health. According

         13  to the US EPA's national scale air toxic assessment

         14  released last March, New York City has the most

         15  toxic air in the nation, largely due to our

         16  transportation sector. This means that New Yorkers

         17  have the greatest risk of getting cancer simply from

         18  breathing the air. Also well known, New York City

         19  has a severe asthma problem. City children are

         20  hospitalized for asthma at twice the national

         21  average and again transportation emissions have been

         22  identified as a major factor in triggering asthma

         23  attacks.

         24                 Second point. Ensuring energy

         25  security. New York state imports more foreign oil
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          2  than any other state in the country. Eighty- five

          3  percent of our oil is imported, compared to the

          4  national average of 56 percent. As oil prices rise

          5  and the U.S. faces growing competition from

          6  developing countries; particularly China and India

          7  for limited global oil reserves, reducing our

          8  dependence on oil will become increasingly important

          9  to New York City's energy and therefore economic

         10  security. One little statistic, according to EPA

         11  data, gasoline- electric hybrids can get 31 to 61

         12  miles per gallon in city driving. In comparison, the

         13  fuel economy on a Ford Crown Victoria, the most

         14  popular car model used for taxis, is only 18 miles

         15  per gallon in city driving.

         16                 Third point, combating global

         17  warming. As a coastal City, rising sea levels pose a

         18  particular threat to New York. Increased use of

         19  hybrid and CNG taxis would help the City reduce its

         20  overall greenhouse emissions. Fourth point,

         21  modernizing New York's transportation sector. New

         22  York is ahead of the curve on so many issues.

         23  However, we are falling behind when it comes to

         24  using advanced technologies in our transportation

         25  sector. Research contained in numerous INFORM
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          2  publications demonstrates that cities around the

          3  country and the world are already using greater

          4  numbers.

          5                 Last point, sending a message to the

          6  private sector. Once considered mutually exclusive,

          7  the environment and business prosperity increasingly

          8  go hand in hand. Intro 473, along with the other

          9  clean taxi legislation proposed this year, send a

         10  clear and more importantly a consistent message to

         11  private taxi owners that the City will seek to

         12  promote the business of any taxi owner who

         13  incorporates cleaner technologies into his or her

         14  operations.

         15                 One brief note on Intro 401, INFORM

         16  supports the creation of taxicab stands under Intro

         17  401 because it will reduce cruising and therefore,

         18  the unproductive emissions of greenhouse gases and

         19  criteria air pollutants as taxis drive around

         20  without a passenger. Thank you. We applaud the City

         21  Council for your efforts and thank you for your

         22  time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         24  Ms. Mandell. Mr. Kahn.

         25                 MR. KAHN: Yes, thank you. My name is
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          2  Ari Kahn and I work for NRDC which is as you know

          3  has been actively involved in New York clean air,

          4  energy, and public health issues for more than 30

          5  years. I'm pleased to testify regarding Intros 401

          6  and 473. I will focus on just two specific

          7  recommendations.

          8                 First, in regards to 473, apply the

          9  incentives only to clean air taxis and not to any

         10  taxis operating on alternative fuel. We support

         11  encouraging the use of less polluting vehicles and

         12  the best way to do so is to base the incentives on

         13  air pollution and greenhouse gas emission

         14  performance standards. Such standards which are

         15  based on specific environmental performance are more

         16  future proof and do not hinder vehicle innovation.

         17                 Local Law 52 of 2006 which was

         18  introduced and spearheaded by Council Member Yassky,

         19  established an excellent clean car taxi definition

         20  that should be used for this bill as well all

         21  taxicab related initiatives going forward. Local Law

         22  52 clean air taxicab definition is more transparent

         23  and effective than the bill's current alternative

         24  fuel vehicle language which may or may not provide a

         25  sufficient level of environmental benefit. As such,
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          2  we strongly urge that Intro 473 use of the

          3  definition of clean air taxicabs defined under Local

          4  Law 52. With this change to the criteria for

          5  priority queue status, NRDC supports Intro 473.

          6                 Second point. Ensure that anti-

          7  idling laws are enforced at taxi stands. We

          8  recognize the need to ensure adequate access to

          9  taxicabs, especially in close proximity to major

         10  mass transit points of egress and areas that are

         11  currently under served.  As such, we support the

         12  goals of Intro 401. However, with the establishment

         13  of any vehicle queue, we believe it is important to

         14  ensure that the City's anti- idling laws are

         15  actively enforced for vehicles on queue at the

         16  taxicab stand. NRDC looks forward to working with

         17  the City Council and we are ready to assist and

         18  provide further detail. Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

         20  for your testimony today. Thank you. Next we will

         21  hear from our final witness for today, X.

         22                 MR. X: I don't know what has gotten

         23  into the TLC here. I thought you were dealing with

         24  Iris Weinshall of the MTA officials. It seems like

         25  the TLC officials don't want to expand. They don't
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          2  want to take any advice. They don't want to listen.

          3  They don't want to add more legal stands. They just

          4  want to stick to one agenda and that's it. I just

          5  don't understand that. There is no reason why we

          6  can't have several stands throughout the five

          7  boroughs. It seems like the only legal stand that

          8  apply here in this borough, as this is the only New

          9  York borough; we have five New York boroughs, not

         10  one. The TLC officials act as if there is only one

         11  borough. I see the MTA officials do that. I've seen

         12  Iris Weinshall do that. Now this is getting really

         13  annoying.

         14                 I'm not about to grab on, but I

         15  thought I would just tell them listen, this is New

         16  York City. There is five boroughs that make up New

         17  York City; not one. You need to do your part of

         18  working with the City Council and everyone else to

         19  get more legal taxis, more legal stands, HOV lanes,

         20  get some attendants. Get an analyst. You may need an

         21  analyst to work things out. Not I'll do what I feel

         22  like doing. I'll do whatever I want, whenever I

         23  want. That's unacceptable.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you X. Thanks

         25  for your input. There be no other witnesses for
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          2  today's hearing of the City Council's Transportation

          3  Committee, it is adjourned.

          4                 (Meeting adjourned 12:42 p.m.)
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